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Important Notice @

The Company’s Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, directors, supervisors and senior management members
hereby warrant that the information contained in this report is free from false representation, misleading statement or
material omission, and assume joint and several liabilities.

The Company’s 2018 annual report and its abstract were reviewed and approved at the 14th meeting of the 9th session
of the Board of Directors on April 29, 2019.

The financial data and indicators contained in this annual report were prepared in compliance with the PRC Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Unless otherwise specified, they represented the consolidated data. The monetary sums
expressed in RMB in this annual report.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP has audited the Company’s 2018 financial statements in
accordance with the Chinese Auditing Standards (“CAS”) and has issued a standard auditors’ report with unqualified
opinions.

The Company’s chairman Gao Jianping, president Tao Yiping and general manager of the financial department Lai
Furong hereby warrant that the financial statements in the 2018 annual report are true, accurate and complete.

The plan of dividends distribution for ordinary shares for the reporting period considered by the Board of Directors: based
on the total capital of 20,774,190,751 shares, cash dividend of RMB6.9 (inclusive of tax) should be distributed for every
10 ordinary shares.

The plan of dividends distribution for preferred shares is as follows: proposed dividends for preferred shares are
RMB1.482 billion in total. Of which, the total nominal value of the preferred shares of “Industrial Bank P1” is RMB13
billion, and proposed dividends to be paid for 2018 are RMB780 million with an annual dividend yield of 6%; the total
nominal value of the preferred shares of “Industrial Bank P2” is RMB13 billion, and proposed dividends to be paid for
2018 are RMB702 million with an annual dividend yield of 5.40%.

Investors are advised to read the full content of this annual report carefully. Perspective and forward-looking statements
regarding future financial conditions, operating performance, business development and business plan contained in
this report do not constitute any substantive commitment of the Company to investors. Investors should pay attention to
investment risks.

The Board of Directors specially reminds investors that the risk factors the Company is subject to have been listed in
detail in this report. Please refer to “Operation Discussion and Analysis” for risk factor the Company is subject to and the
risk management analysis.
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Chairman’s Statement @

The year 2018 marks the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening up, as well as the 30th anniversary of Industrial Bank. In this
landmark year, we thought long and hard about our future while relishing the thirtieth birthday of the Bank. Looking back, we believe the
best commemoration of the past is to promote transformation and development with greater determination and strength in our quest to
become a “first-class bank, everlasting CIB”.

History Paves the Way for the Future

Over the past 30 years, Industrial Bank has risen from a grass root company in Southeast China founded in a sparsely decorated
office in accordance with an approval letter, with registered capital of RMB500 million and 60 employees, to a major banking group with
prominent presence in the financial market of China, ranking among top national joint stock commercial banks in China, top 30 banks in
the world, and top 500 companies globally, leaving a bright mark in the history of the rise of China’s national financial industry. This feat
cannot be achieved without this great era of reform and opening up and the long-standing cares and support of many people, as well as
the unwaveringly rational, practical, and aggressive efforts of those at Industrial Bank. We hereby pay our tribute to the great era, and
express our sincere gratitude towards our customers, investors, Party and government agencies at all levels, and people from various
sectors.

Over the past 30 years, we always rode with the tides and grasped the overall situation, adhered to differentiated development through
exploration and innovation, maintained robust and compliant operations, improved ourselves through systematic reforms, and upheld
our missions and responsibilities to the country. We have amassed invaluable spiritual and cultural wealth, and given unequivocal
answers to the “Questions for CIB”. We have become an epitome of the spirit and culture of the era of reform and opening up.

The Present Anchors the Starting Point of the Future Journey

In 2018, upholding our 30 years of sound tradition, we calmly coped with an external situation that was stable but with alarming
changes, and continued to maintain a stable and progressive development momentum, steadily growing from “5 x 5” to “6 x 6”, i.e. total
assets exceeding RMBS6 frillion, capital approximating RMBG600 billion, net assets exceeding RMB60 billion, the number of employees
exceeding 60 thousand, the number of enterprise customers exceeding 600 thousand, and the number of retail customers exceeding 60
million. This achievement adds a highlight to our 30-year history, and builds a higher starting point for our future development.

In 2018, we further adhered to our business direction and returned to the essence of service, and proactively fulfilled our social
responsibilities. Financing of private enterprises and micro and small enterprises grew rapidly. Green finance and inclusive finance
developed at an accelerated pace. By coordinately utilizing the five systems of “industry-based poverty alleviation, product-based
poverty alleviation, channel-based poverty alleviation, targeted poverty alleviation, and education-oriented poverty alleviation”, we
made constant efforts in projects to improve the wellbeing of the people and in public welfare and charity, thereby consolidating our
development foundation.

In 2018, we further optimized our business structure and reformed our business models by steadfastly promoting “commercial banking
+ investment banking” to improve the overall strength of the Bank. The investment banking and financial market businesses increased
financial supply to the real economy to further expand our advantage. The retail business increases rapidly, consolidating our base.

In 2018, we further improved our corporate governance and reformed the institutional systems. We further promoted the concept of “safety
first, compliance wins” and established a more rigorous management system for internal control of risks and compliance to continuously
tap into our endogenous energy for development.

Strategies Provide Guidance for Our Voyage

A once-in-a-century turbulent situation has just emerged. The call of our era is urging us on. In 2018, we further mapped out our “1234”
strategic system, whereas “1” stands for one principal line that is oriented towards light assets, light capital, and high efficiency to
strive for improvement while maintaining stability and accelerate transformation; “2” stands for the two major businesses — commercial
banking and investment banking, with commercial banking as the main-body and investment banking as the functional arm, carried
out in a customer-oriented manner; “3” stands for the three capabilities as a settlement bank, investment bank, and transaction bank to
be continuously enhanced; and “4” stands for the four key areas — key branches, key industries, key customers, and key products, the
strategic role of which to be strengthened.

The blueprint has been drawn, and the future is around the corner. We will anchor our strategies, and forge ahead with the maturities
and poise of a 30-year-old organization to create greater value. -

Chairman:
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@ President’s Report

In 2018, Industrial Bank adhered to its innate market-oriented nature and persistently developed “commercial banking +
investment banking”, entering a new stage of transformation and development in the year of its 30th anniversary.

Our operations were stable and growing, with assets growing by 4.59% year-on-year, non-performing loan ratio decreasing by
0.02 percentage point from the beginning of the year, provision coverage ratio stable at over 200%, and net profit increasing by
5.98% year-on-year. The adjustment and optimization of the assets-liabilities structure reflected by the liquidity indicator bore
fruits. The non-interest income, which best reflected the effectiveness of “commercial banking + investment banking”, increased
by 21.56% year-on-year. Its proportion in the operating income increased by 2.76 percentage points to 39.57%, driving the
growth rate of operating income from negative growth to positive growth. Our Moody International rating was upgraded. We
won the China Banking Social Responsibility Award for eight consecutive years, as well as many other honors such as the Best
Green Bank and Best Asset Management Bank. These achievements are not only recognition of our past efforts, but also an
impetus for us to work harder in the future.

By honing our capabilities in the market and self-reinvention, our business characteristics are more distinct and our business
vitality is more vigorous. The annual sales of wealth management and other non-deposit financial products exceeded RMB6
trillion. The underwriting scale and number of debt financing instruments for non-financial enterprises leapt to rank first in the
market. Credit bond investment increased by over 200% year-on-year. The trading volume of interest rate bond remained at
the forefront of the interbank market. Assets under management of the Group exceeded RMBS3 ftrillion. The scale of wealth
management by the Bank rose against the market trend. Net value product increased by 287.88% year-on-year, with its
proportion in non-principal-guarantee wealth management products increasing by 36 percentage points from the beginning of
the year to 49.60%. The size of assets under custody reached RMB11.61 trillion. FICC (fixed income, currency & commodity) on
behalf of the customer increased by 57.68% year-on-year. Members of the Group worked together to continuously enhance our
capabilities and provide integrated financial services to our customers.

We firmly adhered to the core principle of “commercial banking + investment banking” to channel the resources of the financial
market into the real economy, growing with customers. The coverage over financial institution customers exceeded 90%.
Corporate customers and retail customers increased by 13.38% and 23.51%, respectively, among which private banking
customers exceeded 30,000, representing an increase of 32.64%. Loans increased by more than RMB500 billion from the
beginning of the year, representing an increase of 20.71%. Inclusive loans to small and micro businesses and private enterprises
increased by 61.40% and 23.39%, respectively. Industrial Bank became the first Chinese-funded bank to issue green finance
bonds in both domestic and overseas markets, and the commercial financial institute with the largest balance of green finance
bonds issued in China, with the balance of green finance exceeding RMB800 billion. With retail credit exceeding RMB1 trillion,
customers AUM approximating RMB1.8 trillion, and net operating income increasing by 26.48% year-on-year, retail finance has
become an important ballast stone against market volatility.

We embraced technology with an open and win-win mentality. With the first Bank-to-Bank Platform in the industry to transform
financial technology into a business model, we have established cooperative relations with 1,906 small and medium-sized
financial institutions and invited 288 non-bank financial institutions to register on our cloud fund management platform, thereby
building a complete financial ecosystem of “co-construction, co-ownership, sharing, and win-win”, enabling resource allocation
to be more efficient and financial services to be more inclusive. We fully promoted the construction of an open bank that serves
“from B to C, and from one customer to a group of customers”. We have become the leading bank in process robots, providing
nearly one hundred API services to customers. Through the “Smart City” platform, we have established deep connections with
499 hospitals, 373 tourist attractions, and 1,371 transportation companies, serving more than 181 million consumers on an
accumulated basis. The “Hao Xing Dong” APP cooperated with 20,000 merchants and increased the number of customers with
bound cards by tenfold in a year.

In 2018, the year of our 30th anniversary, the business practice laid a solid foundation for our stable and long-term development.
Faced with the ever-changing landscape and major revolution, we will continue to create and consolidate differentiated business
characteristics and enhance our core competitiveness guided by the “1234” strategic system, so as to contribute more value to
our customers and the real economy, and achieve glory for Industrial Bank with our efforts and perseverance.

President: &Jﬂ”/ﬁ
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Chairman of the Board of Supervisors : Jiang Yunming
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Director, Vice President Vice President Director, Vice President,
Chen Jinguang Li Weimin Secretary of the Board
Chen Xinjian

Vice President Supervisor
Sun Xiongpeng Zhang Guoming
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INDUSTRIAL BANK

Honors and Awards in 2018

According to the list of "2018 Top 1000 Global Banks”
released by the British magazine The Banker, the
Company ranked 26th in terms of tier 1 capital and
28th in terms of total assets, up two positions in both
categories.

According to the US magazine Forbes' list of
“Top 2000 Global Listed Companies” in 2018,
the Company ranked 62nd, placing 12th among
Mainland Chinese enterprises on the list and 2nd
among joint stock banks on the list.

According to the list of "2018 Top 500 Financial
Brands" released by the British magazine The
Banker and the world-renowned brand value
research institution Brand Finance, the Company
ranked 20th with a brand value of USD11.972 billion,
up 13% from the previous year.

According to the list of "2018 Global Banking
& Finance Review Award" published by the
internationally prestigious financial magazine Global
Banking & Finance Review, the Company won the
"2018 Best Retail Bank of China" and the "Best
Green Bank of China".

Mr. Gao Jianping, chairman of the Company, was
awarded the title of “40 Most Influential Entrepreneurs
in Fujian for the 40th Anniversary of Reform and
Opening Up”.

Won the "2018 International Pioneering Financial
Institution”, "2018 Financial Technology Pioneer
Institution”, "2018 Pioneer Asset Management Bank"
and "2018 Pioneer Credit Card Product Award" in
"2018 International Pioneer Financial Institution
Summit Forum and Awards Ceremony" organized by
the International Financial News. Mr. Gao Jianping,
chairman of the Company, was awarded the “2018
Pioneer Leader in the Financial Industry”.

Won the "2018 Largest Issuance of Green Bonds in
Emerging Markets" award in the 4th "Green Bond
Pioneer Awards" of The Climate Bond Initiative.

Won the "Payment Innovation Star" award granted
by the US magazine Global Finance.

Won the "2018 Best Innovation Project of
China’s Financial Industry" elected by the "2018
Transformation and Innovation Summit Forum
of China’s Financial Industry” organized by the
International Data Corporation (IDC).

Awarded the “Financial Services Bank of the Year for
Listed Companies” by the 2018 Evergreen Awards
organized by Caijing magazine.

Won the "2018 Outstanding Contribution Award
for Technology Innovation in Financial Industry"
in the "2018 China Financial Technology Annual
Conference" organized by Financial Computerizing
magazine.

Won the "2018 Excellence Board of Directors of the
Year of Listed Companies in China" award in the
"2018 Asian Industry and Capital Summit" organized
by 21st Century Business Herald.

At the Thirteenth Asian Annual Finance Summit
and Award Ceremony for Asian Financial
Competitiveness, the Company ranked 11th in
competitiveness among Asian banks for 2018,
placing second among joint stock banks in China,
and was awarded the “Excellent Commercial Bank
in Asia” and “2018 Asset Management Bank of the
Year”.



Won the "Best Joint Stock Bank of the Year" in the
“2018 Golden Dragon Award of Chinese Financial
Institution Gold Metal List” granted by Financial
Times.

Won the "2018 Financial Holding Group with
Excellent Competitiveness” in 2018 Excellent
Competitive Financial Institutions elected by China
Business News.

Won the "2017-2018 Excellent Joint Stock Bank”
in "Excellent Financial Enterprises” elected by the
Economic Observer.

At the Fourteenth China Corporate Social
Responsibility International Forum organized by
China News Service and China Newsweek, the
Company retained the "2018 Responsible Enterprise"
title.

Awarded the “Sustainable Development
Demonstration Enterprise” in the “2018 China
Corporate Social Responsibility Summit Forum,
2018CSR Competitiveness — China Corporate Social
Responsibility” organized by China Business News.

Won the "Green Finance Award” in "2018 China
Small and Medium Commercial Bank Pioneer List”
elected by National Business Daily.

Won the “Outstanding Contribution Award by
the Green Credit Committee” and the “Special
Contribution Unit of the Green Credit Textbook
Compilation and Review” elected by the Green Credit
Committee of the China Banking Association.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Won the "2018 Best Asset Management Bank" award
and "2018 Most Popular Financial Management
Product” elected by the 2018 China Asset
Management Annual Conference of the 21st Century
Business Herald.

Won the "Best Social Responsibility Manager Award
of the Year”, the "Green Finance Award of the Year"
and the "Special Contribution Outlet of the Year for
Social Responsibility” granted by the China Banking

Won the "Best Green Finance Bank of the Year” in
the 2018 "China's Excellent Green Finance” elected
by Asiamoney.

Won the "Golden Pilot" 2018 Excellent Financial
Technology Bank Award and the 2018 Payment
Technology Innovation Award in the 2nd China
Financial Technology (Golden Pilot) Awards of the
21st Century Business Herald.

Won the "Top Ten Financial Technology Product
Innovation Award" and "Top Ten Bank Intelligent Outlet
Innovation Award” in "2018 China Financial Innovation
Awards" granted by The Banker magazine.

Won the “2018 Junding Award for Investment Bank
of All-round Banks in China” and the “2018 Junding
Award for Financing Bank of Syndicates in China” by
the “2018 Junding Award for Excellent Investment
Banks in China” organized by Securities Times.

Won the “2018 Contribution to Ecological Civilization
Construction Award” in the first “Green Hills and
Clear Waters Forum - Conghua Conference” by the
People’s Daily, the State Forestry and Grassland
Administration, etc.
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Definitions @

In this report, unless the context otherwise specified, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

Industrial Bank/the Company

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Central Bank/PBOC

The People’s Bank of China

CSRC

China Securities Regulatory Commission

CBIRC

China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP

Industrial Financial Leasing

Industrial Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

Industrial Trust

China Industrial International Trust Limited

Industrial Fund

CIB Fund Management Co., Ltd.

Industrial Consumer Finance

Industrial Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.

Industrial Futures

Industrial Futures Co., Ltd.

CIB Research

CIB Economic Research and Consulting Co., Ltd.

CIB FINTECH

CIB FINTECH (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Industrial Asset Management

China Industrial Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Yuan

RMB Yuan

11



12

INDUSTRIAL BANK

@ Corporate Profile and Key Financial Indicators

|. Corporate profile

Legal Chinese name: 3¢ $R1TARID B R F

(Abbreviation: 3¢MlI$R1T )
Legal English name: INDUSTRIAL BANK CO., LTD.

Legal representative: Gao Jianping

Secretary of the Board of Directors: Chen Xinjian

Representative of securities affairs: Lin Wei
Address: 154 Hudong Road, Fuzhou, PRC
Tel: (86) 591-87824863
Fax: (86) 591-87842633

Email: irm@cib.com.cn

Registered address: 154 Hudong Road, Fuzhou, PRC

Address: 154 Hudong Road, Fuzhou, PRC
Postal Code: 350003

Website: www.cib.com.cn

Designated newspapers for information disclosure: China Securities Journal, Shanghai

Securities News, Securities Times, Securities Daily

Website designated by CSRC for publishing annual reports: www.sse.com.cn

Location of annual reports filing: the Company’s office of the Board of Directors
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Company stock brief introduction:

Classes of stock The stock exchange Stock abbreviation Stock code
A shares Shanghai Stock Exchange Industrial Bank 601166
Preferred shares Shanghai Stock Exchange Industrial P1 360005
Preferred shares Shanghai Stock Exchange Industrial P2 360012
Preferred shares Shanghai Stock Exchange Industrial P3 360032

Other related information:

Certified public accountants firm engaged by the Company: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Office address: 30 Floor, Bund Center, 222 Yan An East Road, Shanghai, PRC

Names of the signing accountants: Hu Xiaojun, Zhang Hua

Sponsor performing continuous monitoring (1): Huatai United Securities Co., Ltd.
Office address: 6 Floor, Block A, Fengming International Building, No. 22 Fengsheng Alley, Xicheng District, Beijing
Names of signing representatives of sponsor: Zhou Jiwei, Chen Shi

Period for continuous monitoring: From April 7, 2017 to September 5, 2018

Sponsor performing continuous monitoring (2): GF Securities Co., Ltd.; Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.

Office address: 43 Floor, Metropolitan Plaza, 183 Tianhe North Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou; No.268 Hudong Road,
Fuzhou

Names of signing representatives of sponsor: Ji Gang, Wu Guangbin; Zhang Jun, Yu Xiaoqun

Period for continuous monitoring: From September 6, 2018 to December 31, 2018

This report is prepared in both Chinese and English. Should there be any discrepancy
in interpretation, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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ll. Key accounting data and financial indicators for last three years

(I) Key accounting data and financial indicators

Unit: RMB million

Increase/decrease in 2018 2016
Item 2018 2017 compared with 2017 (%)  (Adjusted)
Operating income 158,287 139,975 13.08 157,087
Profit before tax 68,077 64,753 5.13 63,925
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of 60,620 57,200 598 53,850
the parent company
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company, after deduction of non- 56,041 54,464 2.90 52,399
recurring gains and losses
Basic EPS (RMB) 2.85 2.74 4.01 2.77
Diluted EPS (RMB) 2.85 2.74 4.01 2.77
Ba.sm EPS, after deduction of non-recurring 263 260 115 269
gains and losses (RMB)
ROA (%) 0.93 0.92 Up 0.01 percentage point 0.95
Weighted average ROE (%) 14.27 15.35 Down 1.08 percentage points 17.28
Weighted average ROE, after deduction of 1317 1459 Down 1.42 percentage points 16.80
non-recurring gains and losses (%)
Cost-to-income ratio (%) 26.89 27.63  Down 0.74 percentage point 23.39
Cash flows from operating activities (356,009) (162,642) \egativeinthesame period ;4 445
of last year

Net cash flow per share from operating Negative in the same period
activities (RMB) (17.14) (7.83) of last year 1066

December December Increase/decrease at the end December
ltem 31 2018 312017 of 2018 compared with the 31.2016

’ ’ end of 2017 (%) ’

Total assets 6,711,657 6,416,842 459 6,085,895
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the 465,953 416,895 1.77 350,129
shareholders of the parent company
Shgreholders equity attributable to the 440,048 390,990 1255 324,224
ordinary shareholders of the parent company
Net assets per share attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company (RMB) 2118 18.82 12.55 17.02
NPL ratio (%) 1.57 1.59  Down 0.02 percentage point 1.65
Provision coverage ratio (%) 207.28 211.78 Down 4.50 percentage points 210.51
Provision-to-loan ratio (%) 3.26 3.37  Down 0.11 percentage point 3.48
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Notes: 1. Basic EPS and weighted average ROE were calculated based on “Preparation Rules for Information Disclosure

by Companies Offering Securities to the Public No.9-Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and

Earnings Per Share (2010 Revision)”.

2. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company issued an aggregate of RMB26 billion preferred shares
(Industrial P1 and Industrial P2) with non-cumulative dividends. The dividends of the preferred shares for 2018

have not yet been distributed, which will be distributed after approval by the general shareholders’ meeting.

(I1) 2018 quarterly financial data

Unit: RMB million

The first quarter The second The third quarter The fourth quarter

Item (January-March) quarter (July-September) (October-
y (April-June) y-sep December)
Operating income 35,332 38,053 41,234 43,668
Net prqﬁt attributable to the shareholders 17,655 16,002 16,944 10,019
of the listed company
Net profit attributable to the shareholders
of the listed company, after deduction of 16,573 15,092 15,875 8,501
non-recurring gains and losses
Net cash flow from operating activities (209,943) 50,691 (216,597) 19,750
(1) tems and amounts of non-recurring gains and losses
Unit: RMB million

ltem 2018 2017 2016
Gains and losses on the disposal of non-current assets 20 70 27
Government grants recognized in profit or loss 655 362 340
Write-back of assets written-off in previous years 5,342 3,544 1,414
Net non-operating income and expense in addition to the above 144 (166) 176
Impact on income tax (1,566) (1,053) (501)
Total 4,595 2,757 1,456
Non-recurring gains and losses attributable to the shareholders of the parent 4,579 2736 1,451
company
Non-recurring gains and losses attributable to minority shareholders 16 21 5

15



16

INDUSTRIAL BANK

(IV) Supplementary financial data

Unit: RMB million

Item December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Total liabilities 6,239,073 5,994,090 5,731,485
:i’\l:t(i;ti?oe:;s from banks and other financial 220,831 187,929 130,004
Total deposits 3,303,512 3,086,893 2,694,751
Incl: Demand deposits 1,254,858 1,310,639 1,184,963
Time deposits 1,814,016 1,567,574 1,312,417
Other deposits 234,638 208,680 197,371
Total loans 2,934,082 2,430,695 2,079,814
Incl: Corporate loans 1,608,207 1,482,362 1,271,347
Personal loans 1,166,404 910,824 750,538
Discounted bills 159,471 37,509 57,929
Loan loss provisions 95,637 81,864 72,448

(V) Capital adequacy ratio

Unit: RMB million

Key indicator

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Net capital 577,582 526,117 456,958
Incl: Core Tier 1 capital 441,197 392,199 325,945
Other Tier 1 capital 25,970 25,935 25,919
Tier 2 capital 111,247 109,057 106,469
Deductions 832 1,074 1,376
Total risk weighted assets 4,734,315 4,317,263 3,802,734
Capital adequacy ratio (%) 12.20 12.19 12.02
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (%) 9.85 9.67 9.23
Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (%) 9.30 9.07 8.55

Note: Data in this table are calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and based on data

reported to regulatory authorities.
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(VI) Supplementary financial indicators

Unit: %

L Standard December 31, December 31, December 31,
Key indicator

value 2018 2017 2016
Loan-to-deposit ratio (converted to RMB) - 83.90 74.80 72.50
Liquidity ratio (converted to RMB) 225 66.52 60.83 59.35
Proportion of loans to the largest single borrower <10 1.59 2.84 1.82
Proportion of loans to the top ten borrowers <50 10.99 14.66 11.38
Migration ratio of normal loans - 210 217 3.62
Migration ratio of special mention loans - 43.90 26.65 63.69
Migration ratio of substandard loans - 61.36 74.46 86.99
Migration ratio of doubtful loans - 21.22 41.98 16.61

Note: 1. Data in this table are those before consolidation, and data of subsidiaries are not included in this table.
2. Data in this table are calculated based on data reported to regulatory authorities.

(VIl) Changes in shareholders’ equity during the reporting period

Unit: RMB million

Increase during Decrease during

ltem Beginning balance the period the period Closing balance
Share capital 20,774 - - 20,774
Preferred shares 25,905 - - 25,905
Capital reserve 75,011 - - 75,011
Other comprehensive income (1,067) 3,423 - 2,356
General reserve 70,611 2,811 - 73,422
Surplus reserve 10,684 - - 10,684
Undistributed earnings 214,977 60,620 17,796 257,801
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the 416,895 66,854 17,796 465,953

shareholders of the parent company
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(VIII) Items measured at fair value

Unit: RMB million

Gains and Accumulated .
Provision for

losses in the changes in . .
ltem December eriod from fair value impairment December
31, 2017 P L . . made inthe 31, 2018
changes in fair  recognized in .
. period

value equity
Flngnmal assets at fair value through 362,072 (320) ) ) 459,598
profit or loss
Precious metals 29,906 (360) - - 3,185
Derivative financial assets 28,396 - - 42,092

3,589
Derivative financial liabilities 29,514 - - 38,823
Available-for-sale financial assets 502,381 - 2,157 648 644,886
Financial liabilities at fair value through 6,563 10 ) ) 2,594

profit or loss

Note: 1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: primarily the RMB bonds held for the purpose of market making trading. The
Company adjusted the position of its held-for-trading RMB bonds in a dynamic process, based on the trading activity level in the
bond market and its judgment on the market movement. During the reporting period, the Company’s investment in the held-for-
trading bonds increased, and the changes of fair value had a minor impact relative to the scale.

2. Precious metals: being subject to the impact of the proprietary precious metal trading strategy and market movement, the
Company decreased its spot position of precious metals during the reporting period, and its balance at fair value in domestic
precious metals spot trading at the end of the reporting period decreased by RMB26.721 billion compared with that at the
beginning of the period.

3. Derivative financial assets and liabilities: the absolute values of derivative financial assets and liabilities increased compared
with those at the beginning of the period. The overall offset balance increased, meaning that gains from the changes in fair value
of the financial derivatives investment in the period increased.

4. Available-for-sale financial assets: the Company decreased its investment in available-for-sale financial assets during the
reporting period under the need of asset allocation and management, as well as its judgment on the market movement and
analysis of the interbank market liquidity.

5. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: the Company’s financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
mainly -structured liabilities linked to dollar bonds.
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Business Overview of the Company @

|. Main Businesses and Operation Mode of the Company and
Conditions of the Industry

(I) Main businesses and operation mode

Founded in August 1988, the Company is one of the first group of joint-stock commercial banks approved by the
State Council and the People’s Bank of China. On February 5, 2007, the Company was listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

The Company is mainly engaged in commercial bank services, its main business scope includes: deposits taking;
provision of short-, medium- and long-term loans; domestic and international settlement; bills acceptance and discounting;
issue of financial bonds; agency issue, cashing and underwriting of government bonds; trading of government bonds and
financial bonds; agency issue of negotiable securities except stock; trading and agency trading of negotiable securities
except stock; asset custody; interbank borrowing and lending; trading or agency trading of foreign exchange; settiement
and sales of foreign exchange; bank card business; L/C services and guarantee; agency collections and payments and
agency insurance; safe-box services, financial consulting, credit investigation, consulting, witness business and other
banking activities approved by the China banking regulation and administration agencies.

The Company has been advocating the business philosophy of “Growing Together with Sincere Service” and undertaking
the mission of serving the real economy and endeavors to offer comprehensive, diversified, top-quality, and high-efficient
financial services for customers. The Company has insisted on the basic keynote of progressing steadily. It developed
business stably, fixed shortfalls, promoted reforms and firmly pushed forward business transformation. In addition,
the Company continued to optimize its mechanism, dynamically adjusted its business structure, comprehensively
strengthened risk management and laid a solid foundation, thus further boosting the efficiency in responsiveness to the
market and decision making, and propelling sound and quality development in each business line.

(I1) Conditions of the industry and development trend

In 2018, China was still in the transition period between old and new driving forces where the external environment was
stable but changing, the economic growth rate slowed down, and the risks and hazards were exposed at an accelerated
pace. Coupled with the risk prevention and deleveraging policies issued in the previous stage which still imposed many
constraints on the market entities, the lingering uncertainties arising from the US-China economic and trade friction, the
slowdown of the growth of the world economy as a whole, and the Fed’s continuation of the rate hikes, these factors
had a certain impact on the economic fundamentals and posed great challenges to the operations and administration of
the banking industry. At the same time, since the fourth quarter of 2018, by introducing a series of cushioning measures
such as stabilizing the stock market, bailing out private enterprises, and stimulating consumption, the central government
has shifted its policy stance to defensive easing and switched from “reducing leverage” to “stabilizing leverage” for the
financial industry on the basis of specifying the overall tone of the “six stables”, gradually releasing the effects of policy
adjustment. These changes alternated between long-term and short-term and their effects intertwined, creating an
obstacle for simultaneously stabilizing growth, promoting transformation, and preventing risks.

Generally, although the challenges facing China’s economy are still relatively large in the short term, the general direction
and main tone of de-leveraging, strengthening supervision and risk prevention have not wavered. At the industrial level,
orienting towards stabilizing investment, the choices for investment of funds have increased. The pattern of continuous
withdrawal of backward industries, transformation and upgrading of traditional industries, and accelerated development
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of emerging industries is still continuing. At the enterprise level, although the macro policy is moderately relaxed, the
enterprises still face relatively high level of refinancing risk. Companies with higher debt ratios must be especially
vigilant and adhere to the bottom line of compliance. At the financial market level, short-term interest rates in the market
have rapidly declined. The liquidity is expected to remain relatively high in the next stage. The long-term interest rate
in the market has room to fall, providing a window opportunity for structure adjustment and business development for
commercial banks. In terms of business management, enterprises should emphasize the reasonable balance between
business development and various new constraints, and continuously improve the differentiated core competitiveness.
At the financial institution level, the current policy adjustments are beneficial for the development of financial business,
but financial institutions are still in the process of filtering where those who do not advance will be left behind and those
who refuse to change will be eliminated. Commercial banks must ride with the tides of development and take advantages
of the reform and opening up policies to further consolidate and enhance market advantages, while prudently screening
counterparties to prevent cross-contamination.

lI. Explanation on Major Changes of Main Assets during the Reporting Period

As at the end of the reporting period, the total assets of the Company stood at RMB 6,711.657 billion, up 4.59% from the
figure at the beginning of the period, of which loans increased by 20.71% from the figure at the beginning of the period;
financial assets held under resale agreements decreased 17.22% from the figure at the beginning of the period; and
various net investments were down by 7.31% compared with the figure at the beginning of the period. Refer to “Analysis
of Balance Sheets” as discussed and analyzed in “Operation Discussion and Analysis”.

lll. Analysis of Core Competitiveness

The Company is committed to becoming an excellent integrated financial service group. It has inherited and promoted
the excellent business gene of striving for innovation and fighting spirits. The Company consistently brought its business
characters and professional advantages into play, and persisted in differentiating itself from peers. It continued to
enhance employees’ expertise, and rely on technology as the guidance, which laid a solid foundation for the Company’s
long-term and healthy development and enhanced the Company’s competitiveness.

Promoting standardized operation by improving governance structure. Since its establishment, the Company has
been constantly improving its corporate governance in accordance with market-oriented operation mechanism, improving
the internal operation efficiency by standardized operation and scientific management, thereby forming a standardized
corporate structure system with lean management and efficient specialization. On the strength of the mechanism-based
advantages of the Head Office and branches, the Company insisted on the customer-oriented strategy, aligned its
management and operation with market conditions and customer needs, and built matrix management mode. Based on
the requirements arising from market developments, the Company established a management structure that separates
the customer departments from the product departments, and the traditional business from emerging business, and,
at the same time, improved business procedures and supporting mechanism to inject new blood into transformation
development by continuous changes and by taking the essence and discarding the dregs of itself.

Building service brand which is driven by business innovation. The Company insists in focusing on customer and
according to their needs to enhance its scientific technology ability and prominent innovation capability. The Company
has built new products and businesses in many segmented business areas and opens its own “blue ocean”, with distinct
operation characteristics. The Company has built the Industrial Bank brand by business innovation and established
a well-recognized product and service brand system. A batch of products and service brands including “Natural Life”,
“Enjoyable Life”, “Universal Life”, “Industrial E Pay”, “Industrial Auto Finance”, “Industrial Quick Credit”, “Industrial
Steward”, “Green Finance”, “Bank-to-Bank Platform”, “QianDa Money Manager” and “Direct Banking” are widely
recognized in the domestic financial market.
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Promote transformation and development through systematic optimization. Adhering to a customer-centered approach
and oriented towards light capital, light asset, and high efficiency, the Company constantly optimizes its strategy system,
promotes business transformation and development, and continuously optimizes asset-liability structure. By focusing on
“commercial banking and investment banking”, the Company strengthens its characteristics and advantages of direct
financing services in addition to properly carrying out indirect financing services. The Company accelerates the building
of a “Three-Type” bank by enhancing the three fundamental capabilities of a settlement, investment, and transaction
bank. The Company strengthens the construction of “Four Key Areas” by substantially increasing the contribution of key
branches, optimizing the layout in key industries, steadily expanding the sizes of key customers, and consolidating and
expanding the advantages of key products.

Opening up new space for development through intra-group integration. The Company has been persisting in the
multi- market and comprehensive development. Based on two dimensions of expanding bank business and multi-industry
operation, the Company steadily push forward the comprehensive and intra-group integrated process, establishing a
multi-industry comprehensive financial service system focusing on banking, through which it has been transformed from
a single bank to a modern comprehensive financial service group with banking business as the core, covering business
areas including trust, leasing, funds, futures, asset management, consumption finance, internet finance and research and
consultation. Centrally using the Group’s various licenses and platform resources, the Company continued to promote
and improve the Group’s operation and management model by deepening institutional and systematic reforms, thereby
enhancing the internal cohesiveness of the Group. The synergy between the parent company and subsidiaries and
between subsidiaries continued to expand, especially in terms of mutual customer recommendation, channel sharing,
product cross-selling, and the construction of the Group’s core business portfolio. The Group’s overall competitiveness,
customer service capabilities and comprehensive business income continued to increase.

Driving digital transformation with science and technology. The Company has always adhered to the strategy of
“Building the Bank through Science and Technology”. Centering on the Group’s development strategy, the Company
continuously increased investment in science and technology to achieve digital transformation, so as to create a “Safe,
Process-based, Open, and Smart Bank”. It focused on eight major technological areas: big data, robotic process
automation (RPA), open interfaces, artificial intelligence, user experience, blockchain, cloud services and information
security. In 2018, the Company further optimized the information technology management system and mechanism to
invigorate science and technology efforts. It established a Digital Center of Excellence and introduced new concepts
and methods such as agile models, digital design, and customer journey to deepen the integration of technology and
business and further drive business agile innovation.

Building up soft strength through excellent corporate culture. The Company has continuously upheld the core
values of rationality, innovation, people-based and sharing, which fostered corporate culture advocating simplicity,
harmony and efficiency. In addition, we leveraged such excellent corporate culture to build up a pragmatic and
aggressive operating style, which enhanced the cohesiveness of our workforce and supported the Company’s long-term
development.
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@ Operation Discussion and Analysis

|. Major operations during the reporting period

(I) Overview

1. Overall operations

During the reporting period, the Company maintained the operating strategy of progressing steadily, and actively
implemented the national macro-control policies and financial regulatory requirements to serve the real economy, prevent
and mitigate risks, effectively promote the further optimization of the asset-liability structure, maintain good development
of various businesses, and steadily improve operating performance and operating quality.

(1) Each business developed stably. As at the end of the reporting period, the total assets of the Company reached
RMB6,711.657 billion, representing an increase of 4.59% from the figure at the beginning of the reporting period; the
balance of domestic and foreign currency deposit was RMB3,303.512 billion, representing an increase of 7.02% from the
figure at the beginning of the reporting period; the balance of domestic and foreign currency loan reached RMB2,934.082
billion, representing an increase of 20.71% from the figure at the beginning of the reporting period.

(2) Profitability maintained relatively good status. During the reporting period, the operating income recorded
RMB158.287 billion, up 13.08% year-on-year, of which net fee and commission income reached RMB42.978 billion,
up 10.94% year-on-year. Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company for the whole year reached
RMB60.620 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.98%. During the reporting period, weighted average ROE
was 14.27%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.08 percentage points, total return on assets reached 0.93%,
representing a year-on-year increase of 0.01 percentage point.

(3) The quality of assets was controllable overall. As at the end of the reporting period, the balance of the Company’s
NPLs stood at RMB46.140 billion, up RMB7.486 billion from the figure at the beginning of the period with NPL ratio
of 1.57%, down 0.02 percentage point from the beginning of the period. During the reporting period, the provisions
amounted to RMB46.404 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 30.69%, the provision-to-loan ratio was 3.26% at
the end of the reporting period, and the provision coverage ratio was 207.28%.

2. Composition of operating income and operating profit

During the reporting period, operating income of the Company was RMB158.287 billion, and its operating profit was
RMBG67.914 billion.

(1) The Company divided its regional branches into ten segments by importance and comparability, namely, head office
(including the headquarters and its affiliated operating units), Fujian, Beijing, Shanghai, Guangdong, Zhejiang, Jiangsu,
Northeast and other regions, Western China and Central China. Operating income and operating profit of various regions
are set out as follows:
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Unit: RMB million

Change over

Change over previous

Region Operating income previous year (%) Operating profit year (%)
Head office 62,453 22.69 35,915 8.11
Fujian 19,892 13.26 8,201 23.06
Beijing 7,089 (3.67) 4,243 (27.89)
Shanghai 6,340 (18.37) 3,714 (36.61)
Guangdong 9,943 (0.16) 4,069 (25.57)
Zhejiang 3,825 77.66 659 Ne%ztrii‘;edizftraztsig
Jiangsu 5,988 7417 2,768 2,062.50
Northeast and other regions 14,243 (0.14) (1,856) (153.21)
Western China 14,486 27.00 4,829 Ne%ztri;;edigftraits?g
Central China 14,028 (7.49) 5,372 (3.26)
Total 158,287 13.08 67,914 4.78

(2) The amount, proportion and year-on-year changes of the items of operating income

Unit: RMB million

Percentage in total Increase/decrease

Item Amount operating income (%)  year-on-year (%)
Interest income from loans 124,819 37.01 19.15
Interest income from placements 2,707 0.80 102.47
Interest income from amount due from the Central Bank 6,545 1.94 (3.93)
::;?iﬁfitorscome from deposits in banks and other financial 2.949 0.87 48.12
Interest income from resale agreements 2,824 0.84 (1.91)
Gain and loss, and interest income from investment 150,263 44 .55 12.91
Fee and commission income 47,062 13.95 11.98
Interest income from financing lease 5,717 1.69 4.48
Other income (5,594) (1.65) (161.50)
Total 337,292 100 9.70
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3. Financial position and operating results

(1) Changes of key financial indicators and descriptions

Unit: RMB million

Increase/
ltem December December decrease over Brief descriotion
31, 2018 31,2017 previous year- P
end (%)
Steady and healthy development of various
Total assets 6,711,657 6416842 459 asset businesses due to t_he_ con_trol of growth
rate of assets and optimization of asset
structure
Steady and healthy development of various
Total liabilities 6,239,073 5,994,090 4.09 liability businesses due to the optimization of
liability structure
Shareholders’ equity
attributable to the 465,953 416,895 1.77 Transfer-in of the profit earned in the current
shareholders of the year
parent company
Increase/
ltem 2018 2017 decrease over Brief description
previous year
(%)
Stable growth in interest-bearing assets, interest
Net profit attributable to margin increased year-on-year, revenue from
the shareholders of the 60,620 57,200 5.98 intermediate business maintained steady growth;
parent company cost growth was reasonably controlled and
adequate provisions were made
. Down 1.08 The growth in net profit was slower than the growth
ge)lghted average ROE 14.27 15.35 percentage in weighted net assets, resulting in decrease in
’ points return on net assets
Lo Assets and liabilities were restructured, more
Cash flows from operatin Negative in the efforts were paid to originate on-balance sheet
Perating  (356,009)  (162,642) same period of P 9

activities

last year

loans and standardized assets; non-standard
assets investments were downsized




(2) Main items with changes over 30% in the accounting statement
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Unit: RMB million

Increase/decrease
. N December December . . o
Main accounting item over previous year- Brief description
31,2018 31,2017
end (%)
Amount due from banks
and other financial 53,303 77,559 (31.27) Decrease in short-term external deposits
institutions
Precious metals 3,350 30,053 (88.85) Decrease in holding of precious metals
Placements with banks Increased short-term placements with
and other financial 98,349 31,178 215.44 ) . p. oo
e banks and other financial institutions
institutions
Taxes payable 11,297 8,128 38.99 Increase in enterprise income tax and VAT
Other comprehensive Negative in the same Increased balance of change in fair value
. P 2,356 (1,067) gam of available-for-sale financial assets
income period of last year . : o
included in other comprehensive income
. N Increase / Decrease . L
Main accounting item 2018 2017 YoY (%) Brief description
Investment gains (losses) 26,482 4,514 486.66 Being fairly interrelated, the overall gains
(Losses) gains from Negative in the same of these three items after consolidation
gain 2,919 (622) 9 amounted to RMB18.103 billion, representing
changes in fair value period of last year . o .
a year-on-year increase of 60.52%, mainly
Foreign exchange gains due to the increase in investment gains such
(losses) (11,298) 7,386 (252.97) 5 fund dividends
:answ;):tlgment loss of 46,404 35,507 30.69 Increased impairment loss of loans made
Business tax and 1,408 975 44.41 Increase in tax gnd surcharges as a result
surcharges of growth of business scale
The comprehensive income from the
Net amount of other Negative in the same changing of available-for-sale fair value
comprehensive income, 3,352 (2,167) 9 ging

after tax

period of last year

increased year-on-year during the reporting
period
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(I1) Analysis of the balance sheet

1.Asset

As at the end of the reporting period, the total assets of the Company stood at RMB6,711.657 billion, up 4.59% from
the figure at the beginning of the period, of which loans increased by RMB503.387 billion or 20.71% from the figure at

the beginning of the period; financial assets held under resale agreements decreased by RMB16.036 billion or 17.22%

compared with the figure at the beginning of the period; and various net investments decreased by RMB227.950 billion

or 7.31% compared with the figure at the beginning of the period. The composition of the total assets of the Company is

shown in the table below:

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

ftem Balance  Percentage (%) Balance  Percentage (%)
Net loans and advances to customers 2,838,445 42.29 2,348,831 36.60
Investment " " 2,892,216 43.09 3,120,166 48.62
Financial assets held under resale agreements 77,083 1.15 93,119 1.45
Finance lease receivables 104,253 1.55 103,495 1.61
Due from banks 53,303 0.79 77,559 1.21
::llsat(i:tirt?c?:és with banks and other financial 98,349 147 31,178 0.49
Cash and balances with central bank 475,781 7.09 466,403 7.27
Others " 172,227 2.57 176,091 2.75
Total 6,711,657 100 6,416,842 100

Note: (1) Included the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, receivable account
investments, held-to-maturity investments and long-term equity investments.

(2) Included precious metals, derivative financial assets, interest receivable, fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible

assets, goodwill, deferred tax assets and other assets.

The details of loans are set out as follows:

(1) Classification of loans

Unit: RMB million

Type December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Corporate loans 1,608,207 1,482,362
Personal loans 1,166,404 910,824
Discounted bills 159,471 37,509
Total 2,934,082 2,430,695
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As at the end of the reporting period, corporate loans accounted for 54.81%, down 6.18 percentage points as compared
with the figure at the beginning of the period; personal loans accounted for 39.75%, up 2.28 percentage points as
compared with that at the beginning of the period; and discounted bills accounted for 5.44%, up 3.90 percentage points
as compared with the figure at the beginning of the period. During the reporting period, the Company proactively grasped
the changes in economic situation and rationally determined the credit layout of mainstream business and continued to
maintain a steady and balanced development of key businesses.

(2) Loan distribution by industry

As at the end of the reporting period, the top five industries that received the largest proportion of bank loans were:
“personal loans”, “manufacturing”, “leasing and commercial service”, “wholesale and retail”, and “real estate”. The details
on distribution by industry are set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Industry Loan Percentage NPL ratio Loan Percentage NPL

balance (%) (%)  balance (%) ratio (%)
Agriculture, forestry, husbandry and fishery 6,967 0.23 0.66 6,958 0.29 0.89
Mining 59,421 2.03 3.39 65,503 2.69 3.71
Manufacturing 359,593 12.26 3.79 335,445 13.80 3.55
Production and supply of power, heat, gas and water 77,948 2.66 0.61 72,413 2.98 0.25
Construction 95,487 3.25 1.30 89,581 3.69 1.61
Transportation, logistics and postal service 79,355 2.70 1.15 69,794 2.87 1.13
Information transmission, software and IT service 18,046 0.62 1.96 18,083 0.73 0.33
Wholesale and retail 224,723 7.66 6.98 223,649 9.20 5.34
Accommodation and catering 3,183 0.11 0.54 3,068 0.13 4.10
Finance 21,537 0.73 0.18 23,865 0.98 0.16
Real estate 195,490 6.66 1.21 151,488 6.23 0.66
Leasing and commercial services 263,411 8.98 0.55 226,770 9.34 0.41
Scientific research and technical service 8,524 0.29 1.85 4,641 0.19 5.26
}’&\]’;fl‘f; ac(;’r:fn‘fsr;’;:g: environment and public 425 568 5.91 0.09 163,577 673  0.10
Residential services, repair and other related services 1,469 0.05 1.93 2,704 0.1 1.04
Education 898 0.03 0.56 1,349 0.06 0.00
Sanitation and social services 8,427 0.29 0.57 10,848 0.45 0.06
Culture, sporting and entertainment 6,539 0.22 0.19 7,057 0.29 0.12
E;tzirﬁzz?i?r:r;istration, social security and social 3,825 013 0.00 5478 023 0.00
International organization 96 0.00 0.00 91 0.00 0.00
Personal loans 1,166,404 39.75 0.64 910,824 37.47 0.80
Discounted bills 159,471 5.44 0.00 37,509 1.54 0.00
Total 2,934,082 100 1.57 2,430,695 100 1.59
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During the reporting period, the Company continued to implement differentiated credit granting policy of “ensuring credit
supply to some, controlling supply to some and cutting supply to some”, actively supporting China’s major strategic
planning, including major strategic planning areas such as the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the construction of the Xiong'an
New District, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and credit funding needs of areas in relation to the “Belt and Road”, the Free Trade Zone, and the new urbanization
construction. The Company continued to increase support for the areas of people’s livelihood and consumption
upgrades, with a focus on supporting weak-cycle industries such as medicine, education, tourism, and communications.
It actively responded to the requirements of the transformation from “high growth to high quality”, supporting emerging
industries under national strategies such as optimization and upgrade of traditional industries, high-end manufacturing,
new generation information technology and new energies that are in line with national policy orientation, in rapid
development stage, and have broad market prospects. In addition, the Company continued with the green finance
principle and supported eco-friendly industries that generate evident social benefits, adopt mature technologies and have
commercialized operations. We also fully authorized employees and took full advantage of the guiding function of the
credit granting policy. Based on the general principle of “Precisely Managing and Accurately Controlling”, we effectively
controlled regional, systematic, industry and concentration risks, and drove reasonable business layout and balanced
development across different industries, customer categories and products.

During the reporting period, due to slowing economic growth, industry structure adjustment, and de-leveraging of the
macro economy, the Company faced certain pressure from credit risks. However, the Company maintained the intensity
of control over asset quality and strengthened the disposal of NPL and strictly control new risk exposure. As a result, the
NPL ratio declined as compared with the beginning of the period.

(3) Loan distribution by geographical region
Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Region

Loan balance Percentage (%) Loan balance  Percentage (%)
Head office 307,847 10.49 196,298 8.08
Fujian 313,459 10.68 302,458 12.44
Guangdong 328,717 11.20 250,615 10.31
Jiangsu 265,858 9.06 206,352 8.49
Zhejiang 208,879 7.12 161,574 6.65
Shanghai 115,511 3.94 121,291 4.99
Beijing 181,167 6.17 154,237 6.35
Northeast and other regions 408,533 13.93 341,530 14.04
Western China 376,378 12.83 315,413 12.98
Central China 427,733 14.58 380,927 15.67
Total 2,934,082 100 2,430,695 100

The Company’s loan distribution by geographical region remained stable. The Company’s operations are mainly in
Guangdong, Fujian, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Beijing, Shanghai and other economically developed regions. Implementing the
regionally differentiated policy combining support and control based on the principal of supporting over-performers and
eliminating under-performers, the Company gave play to the advantages in terms of resources, market environment,
industrial cluster, etc. of various regions, formulated credit policy with regional characteristics, and gave priority to
principal businesses with regional advantages. Meanwhile, the Company prioritized resources inclination and realized
coordination of key businesses in accordance with national key strategic layout and specific implementation plan.
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Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Security type

Loan balance Percentage (%) Loan balance Percentage (%)
Unsecured loans 728,050 24.81 585,734 2410
Guaranteed loans 625,002 21.30 582,000 23.94
Secured by mortgage 1,150,190 39.20 977,266 40.21
Secured by collateral 271,369 9.25 248,186 10.21
Discounted bills 159,471 5.44 37,509 1.54
Total 2,934,082 100 2,430,695 100

As at the end of the reporting period, the proportion of the Company’s unsecured loans increased by 0.71 percentage

point as compared with the figure at the beginning of the period; the proportion of guaranteed loans decreased by 2.64

percentage points as compared with that at the beginning of the period; the proportion of loans secured by mortgage

and collateral decreased by 1.97 percentage points as compared with the figure at the beginning of the period, while the

proportion of loans secured by discounted bills increased by 3.90 percentage points as compared with the figure at the

beginning of the period.

(5) Loans granted to the top ten borrowers

Unit: RMB million

Customer December 31, 2018 Percentage in total loans (%)
Customer A 8,610 0.29
Customer B 8,299 0.28
Customer C 5,899 0.20
Customer D 5,808 0.20
Customer E 5,800 0.20
Customer F 5,400 0.18
Customer G 5,000 0.17
Customer H 5,000 0.17
Customer | 4,980 0.17
Customer J 4,728 0.16
Total 59,524 2.02

The loan balance of the Company’s largest single borrower as at the end of the period was RMB8,610 million, accounting

for 1.59% of the Company’s net capital before consolidation, which conformed to the requirement by the regulatory

departments that the proportion of loan balance of a single borrower could not exceed 10% of a bank’s net capital.
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(6) Structure of personal loans

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

ltem Loan Percentage NPL ratio Loan Percentage NPL ratio

balance (%) (%) balance (%) (%)
r':g;gggggﬂgz““a' and business 749,360 6425 031 603047 66.21 0.30
Personal business loans 63,978 5.49 2.08 41,004 4.50 4.65
Credit cards 271,960 23.32 1.06 186,256 20.45 1.29
Others 81,106 6.94 1.21 80,517 8.84 1.45
Total 1,166,404 100 0.64 910,824 100 0.80

Personal housing and commercial housing loans decreased by 1.96 percentage points compared with the beginning
of the period. Personal business loans increased by 0.99 percentage point compared with the beginning of the period.
Credit card balances increased by 2.87 percentage points compared with the beginning of the period. As at the end of the
reporting period, the NPL ratio of personal loans slightly declined by 0.16 percentage point, reflecting overall controllable
risk.

The Company further strengthened risk prevention and control of personal loan business. First, the Company promoted
the retail credit factory mode across the board. Retail credit business process was reengineered to centralize, streamline
and standardize middle and back-stage business processing and risk management. Second, the Company effectively
used big data technology to enrich personal credit risk assessment metrics, and fully enhance the level of intelligence in
retail banking risk management. Third, the Company conducted risk check and post-loan assessment in key areas, timely
optimized and adjusted credit granting policies, and accelerated risk elimination and disposal procedures.
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The details of investment are set out as follows:

(1) Analysis of total investment

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company’s net investment declined by RMB227,950 million or 7.31% to
RMB2,892,216 million from the figure at the beginning of the period. The specific composition of investment is set out as
follows:

@ Classification based on accounting item

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ftem Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
E:g?}?giralloaszsets at fair value through 459,598 15.89 362,072 11.60
Available-for-sale 647,102 22.37 504,221 16.16
Receivables 1,387,150 47.96 1,913,382 61.32
Held-to-maturity 395,142 13.66 337,483 10.82
Long-term equity investments 3,224 0.1 3,008 0.10
Total 2,892,216 100 3,120,166 100

During the reporting period, the Company’s investment decreased and the number of receivables was large, primarily
due to reduced investments in non-standard assets.

@ Classification based on issuer

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Type Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
Government bonds 920,255 31.82 824,587 26.43
Central bank bills and financial bonds 115,417 3.99 198,694 6.37
Corporate bonds 320,828 11.09 277,841 8.90
Other investments 1,532,492 52.99 1,816,036 58.20
Long-term equity investments 3,224 0.11 3,008 0.10
Total 2,892,216 100 3,120,166 100

During the reporting period, the Company further optimized the investment asset structure by overweighting government
bonds maintaining the scale of standard investments such as bonds and interbank deposits. The scale of non-standard
investments such as wealth management products, trusts and other income rights decreased by RMB463.826 billion,
mainly because the Company actively reduced the scale of interbank assets, leading to significant reduction of the scale
of interbank specialized non-standard investments.
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(2) Long-term equity investments

As at the end of the reporting period, the book value of the Company’s long-term equity investments was RMB3, 224
million, and the details are set out as follows:

® The Company held 294.40 million shares of Jiujiang City Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. with a proportion of equity interest
of 12.23% and a book value of RMB2,892 million.

@ CIB Wealth Management Co., Ltd. held the book value of other long-term equity investment of RMB280 million in total
at the end of the reporting period.

® CIB Guoxin Asset Management Co., Ltd. held the book value of other long-term equity investment of RMB52 million in
total at the end of the reporting period.

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions are set out as follows:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had a balance of RMB53, 319 million in deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, decreased RMB24,256 million or 31.27% from the figure at the beginning of the period. The main
reason is that the company decreased deposits with domestic banks.

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Type Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
Deposits with domestic banks 29,316 54.98 61,425 79.18
Deposits with other domestic financial institutions 5,236 9.82 4,232 5.46
Deposits with foreign banks 18,694 35.06 11,918 15.36
Deposits with other foreign financial institutions 73 0.14 - -
Total 53,319 100 77,575 100

Details of financial assets held under resale agreements are set out as follows:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company recorded a balance of RMB77.416 billion in financial assets held
under resale agreements, representing a decrease of RMB15.703 billion or 16.86% compared with the beginning of the
period, mainly due to the reduction in the financial assets held under resale agreements as the Company adjusted asset

allocation.
Unit: RMB million
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Type

Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
Bonds 76,098 98.30 88,684 95.24
Bills 1,318 1.70 333 0.36
Trusts and other beneficial interests - - 4,102 4.40

Total 77,416 100 93,119 100
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As at the end of the reporting period, the total liabilities of the Company stood at RMB6,239,073 million, representing an

increase of RMB244,983 million or 4.09% from the figure at the beginning of the period.

The composition of the total liabilities of the Company is shown in the table below:

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

ftem Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
Due to banks and other financial institutions 1,344,883 21.56 1,446,059 2412
Elstﬁi?:nnsts from banks and other financial 220,831 3.54 187,929 314
Zg::;zi:rit:ssets sold under repurchase 230,569 3.70 229,794 3.83
Due to customers 3,303,512 52.95 3,086,893 51.50
Bonds payable 717,854 11.51 662,958 11.06
Other liabilities note 421,424 6.74 380,457 6.35
Total 6,239,073 100 5,994,090 100

Note: Included due to Central Bank, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial liabilities, employee benefits

payable, tax payable, interest payable and other liabilities.

The specific composition of customer deposits is set out as follows:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company’s balance of customer deposits was RMB3,303,512 million, an

increase of RMB216,619 million or 7.02% compared with the figure at the beginning of the period.

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

ftem Amount Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)
Demand deposits 1,254,858 37.98 1,310,639 42.46
Incl: Corporate 1,001,358 30.31 1,083,505 35.10
Personal 253,500 7.67 227,134 7.36
Time deposits 1,814,016 54.92 1,567,574 50.78
Incl: Corporate 1,541,943 46.68 1,373,402 44.49
Personal 272,073 8.24 194,172 6.29
Other deposits 234,638 7.10 208,680 6.76
Total 3,303,512 100 3,086,893 100
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The deposits from banks and other financial institutions are set out as follows:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had a balance of RMB1,344,883 million in deposits from banks and
other financial institutions, a decrease of RMB101,176 million or 7.00% from the figure at the beginning of the period.
The Company rationally adjusted the asset-liability structure based on the circumstances of external market and reduced

interbank deposits.

Unit: RMB million

Transaction counterparty

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Balance Percentage (%)

Balance Percentage (%)

Deposits from banks 416,471 30.97 396,646 27.43
Deposits from other financial institutions 928,412 69.03 1,049,413 72.57
Total 1,344,883 100 1,446,059 100

Details of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are set out as follows:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company recorded a balance of RMB230,569 million in financial assets sold

under repurchase agreements, representing an increase of RMB775 million or 0.34% from the figure at the beginning of

the period.
Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Type

Balance Percentage (%) Balance  Percentage (%)
Bonds 181,969 78.92 209,658 91.24
Bills 48,600 21.08 20,136 8.76
Totall 230,569 100 229,794 100
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(I11)y Analysis of the income statement

During the reporting period, the Company delivered steady and healthy growth in various businesses, with steady
growth in daily average interest-bearing assets. The net interest margin recorded a year-on-year increase; there was
a sustained growth in fee and commission income. The cost-to-income ratio was under control at a relative low level;
various provisions were made sufficiently; and the net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company reached
RMB60,620 million, up 5.98% year-on-year.

Unit: RMB million

ltem 2018 2017 Increase/Decrease YoY (%)
Operating income 158,287 139,975 13.08
Net interest income 95,657 88,451 8.15
Net non-interest income 62,630 51,524 21.56
Business tax and surcharges (1,408) (975) 44.41
Operating and administrative expense (42,064) (38,130) 10.32
Impairment loss of assets (46,404) (35,507) 30.69
Other operating costs (497) (550) (9.64)
Net non-operating income and expense 163 (60) Negative in the same period
of last year

Profit before tax 68,077 64,753 5.13
Income tax (6,832) (7,018) (2.65)
Net profit 61,245 57,735 6.08
Profit and loss of minority shareholders 625 535 16.82
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent 60,620 57,200 598

company

1. Net interest income

During the reporting period, the net interest income of the Company was RMB95,657 million, representing an increase
of RMB7,206 million or 8.15% year-on-year. The business maintained a steady and rapid growth, daily average scale of
interest-bearing assets up 2.46% year-on-year. The net interest margin recorded a year-on-year increase of 10 BP.
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The composition of interest income and interest expense during the period is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

2018 2017
ltem
Amount  Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)

Interest income

Interest income from corporate and personal 121,266 44.82 103,610 41.00

loans

Interest income from discounted bills 3,553 1.31 1,150 0.46

Interest income from investments 123,781 45.75 128,567 50.88

Interest income from the amount due from the 6,545 242 6.813 270

Central Bank

Interes_t |nco_m§ frqm placements with banks and 2,707 1.00 1,337 053

other financial institutions

Interest income from resale agreements 2,824 1.04 2,879 1.14

Intere_st income fror_n deposits in banks and 2,949 1.09 1,991 0.79

other financial institutions

Interest income from financing lease 5,717 2.11 5,472 217

Other interest income 1,236 0.46 825 0.33
Subtotal of interest income 270,578 100 252,644 100
Interest expense

Interest expense on loans from the Central Bank 8,639 4.94 7,105 4.33

Interest expense on deposits 69,985 40.01 54,891 33.43

Interest expense on bonds issuance 27,707 15.84 28,390 17.29

Interegt expense .on.deposns from banks and 55,205 31.56 64.123 30.04

other financial institutions

Interegt expense on Placements from banks and 8,899 5.09 6.185 377

other financial institutions

Interest expense on repurchase agreements 4,259 2.43 3,358 2.05

Other interest expenses 227 0.13 141 0.09
Subtotal of interest expense 174,921 100 164,193 100
Net interest income 95,657 88,451

The Company’s net interest spread was 1.54%, representing an increase of 10 BP year-on-year; the net interest margin
was 1.83%, representing an increase of 10 BP year-on-year. The daily average balance, annualized average yield and
cost rate of the Company’s asset and liability items are as follows:
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Unit: RMB million

2018 2017

ltem Average  Average  Average  Average
balance yield (%) balance yield (%)

Interest-bearing assets
Corporate and personal loans and advances 2,686,176 4.69 2,280,316 4.59

Based on loan type:
Corporate loans 1,667,424 482 1,459,103 472
Personal loans 1,018,752 4.48 821,213 4.37

Based on loan term:
General short-term loans 1,139,365 4.51 934,716 4.43
Medium and long-term loans 1,460,677 4.87 1,306,980 4.76
Discounted bills 86,134 4.12 38,620 2.98
Investments 2,577,388 4.80 2,877,800 4.50
Deposits in the Central Bank 425,645 1.54 452,719 1.50
o s e i ks s UG S g ae1 2004 959
Financial leasing 109,533 5.22 120,194 4.55
Total 6,090,319 4.44 5,944,363 4.25

2018 2017
ltem Average Average Average Average
balance cost ratio balance cost ratio
(%) (%)
Interest-bearing liabilities

Due to customers 3,201,074 219 2,903,175 1.89
Corporate deposits 2,719,409 2.25 2,509,352 1.93
Demand deposits 1,073,591 0.75 1,064,045 0.68
Time deposits 1,645,818 3.22 1,445,307 2.84
Personal deposits 481,665 1.84 393,823 1.67
Demand deposits 246,033 0.30 222,692 0.30
Time deposits 235,632 3.44 171,131 3.45
Do s o bk o TS ST qgrage ass o0s o
Borrowings from the Central Bank 262,826 3.29 228,526 3.1
Bonds payable 693,831 3.99 719,230 3.95
Total 6,029,752 2,90 5,840,029 2.81
Net interest spread 1.54 1.44
Net interest margin 1.83 1.73

Standard for measuring net interest margin: gains deriving from monetary funds and bond fund investment business shall
not be classified as interest income, and their corresponding interest-bearing liabilities and interest expense shall be

adjusted accordingly.
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2. Net non-interest income

During the reporting period, the net non-interest income of the Company was RMB62,630 million, accounting for
39.57% of the operating income, representing an increase of RMB11,106 million or 21.56% year-on-year. The specific
composition is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

Item 2018 2017
Net fee and commission income 42,978 38,739
Gain and loss from investment 26,482 4,514
Gain and loss from changes in fair value 2,919 (622)
Gain and loss from exchange (11,298) 7,386
Gain from disposal of asset 19 69
Other income 637 257
Income from other businesses 893 1,181
Total 62,630 51,524

During the reporting period, the Company realized fee and commission income of RMB42,978 million, up RMB4,239
million or 10.94% year-on-year. Items like gain and loss from investment, gain and loss from changes in fair value and
gain and loss from exchange were highly interrelated. After consolidation, the overall profit and loss reached RMB18,103
million, representing an increase of RMB6,825 million year-on-year, mainly due to the increase in gains from investment,
such as fund dividends.

The specific composition of fee and commission income is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

2018 2017
ltem
Amount Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%)
Fee and commission income:
Fee income from payment and settlement 1,682 3.57 1,190 2.83
Fee income from bank cards 21,408 45.49 13,228 31.48
Fee income from agency business 2,670 5.67 3,059 7.28
Fee income from guarantee commitment 1,526 3.24 1,673 3.98
Fee income from trading business 942 2.00 602 1.43
Fee income from custody business 3,405 7.24 4,063 9.67
Fee income from consulting service 11,124 23.64 14,416 34.30
Fee income from trust business 2,118 4.50 1,631 3.88
Fee income from lease business 1,053 2.24 1,060 2.52
Other fee income 1,134 2.41 1,105 2.63
Sub-total 47,062 100 42,027 100
Fee and commission expense 4,084 3,288

Net fee and commission income 42,978 38,739
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During the reporting period, the operating expense of the Company was RMB42,064 million, up RMB3,934 million or

10.32% year-on-year. The specific composition is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

2018 2017

ltem

Amount Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%)
Accrued payroll 26,229 62.35 23,787 62.38
Depreciation and amortization 2,423 5.76 2,052 5.38
Lease expense 3,003 714 2,889 7.58
Research and development expense 630 1.50 457 1.20
Other general and administrative expenses 9,779 23.25 8,945 23.46
Total 42,064 100 38,130 100

During the reporting period, centering on the financial resources allocation principle of “steady progress, transformation

and innovation”, the Company increased expenses for key areas including expansion of core liabilities and business

transformation. Operating expenses increased and the cost-to-income ratio was 26.89%, maintaining at a low level.

4. Impairment loss of assets

During the reporting period, the Company’s impairment loss of assets was RMB46,404 million, up RMB10,897 million or

30.69% year-on-year. The specific composition of impairment loss of assets is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

2018 2017

ltem

Amount Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%)
Impairment loss of loans 38,067 82.03 28,621 80.61
Impairment loss on investment in accounts receivable 5,409 11.66 6,290 17.71
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets 648 1.40 (598) (1.68)
Impairment loss on financial leasing receivable 1,128 243 462 1.30
Impairment loss on other assets 1,152 2.48 732 2.06
Total 46,404 100 35,507 100

During the reporting period, the Company accrued a loan impairment loss of RMB38,067 million, up RMB9,446 million

year-on-year. Mainly due to the growth of loan scale, the loan scale at the end of the year increased by RMB503.387

billion compared with the beginning of the period, representing an increase of 20.71%.
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5. Income tax

During the reporting period, the effective income tax rate of the Company was 10.04%. The difference between the

income tax expense and the amount calculated based on the 25% statutory tax rate is set out as follows:

Unit: RMB million

Item 2018
Profit before tax 68,077
Statutory tax rate (%) 25
Income tax calculated at statutory tax rate 17,019
Effect on tax due to adjustment on the following items:

Tax-exempt income (12,105)

Non-deductible items 1,867

Adjustment on the tax of previous years 51
Income tax expense 6,832

(IV) Analysis of the cash flow statement

Unit: RMB million

Item 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities (356,099) (162,642)
Cash flows from investing activities 422,390 268,261
Cash flows from financing activities 10,436 (67,067)

During the reporting period, the net cash outflows from operating activities was RMB356,099 million, representing an

increase of RMB193,457 million as compared with last year, mainly due to the increased efforts in loan issuance.

Net cash inflows from investing activities was RMB422,390 million, representing an increase of RMB154,129 million as

compared with previous year, mainly due to the reduction of non-standard investment which resulted in a decrease in the

increment of investment business.

Net cash inflows from financing activities were RMB10,436 million, representing an increase of RMB77,503 million as

compared with previous year, mainly due to the year-on-year increase in interbank deposit business.
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(V) Capital management

1. Capital management overview

During the reporting period, the Company had conscientiously implemented the capital management policy according
to the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) of CBIRC. As per “2016-2020 Group Development Plan” and
“Industrial Bank Medium-term Capital Management Planning (2018-2020)”, the Company will achieve healthy and
sustainable development as well as make sure capital adequacy ratio meet requirements by well performing capital
management policies.

In 2018, the Company realized the endogenous, balanced development of capital without external capital replenishment.
In accordance with regulatory policies on external capital, it fully demonstrated the necessity and feasibility of external
capital replenishment based on the actual needs of the Group’s future business development. In 2018, the Company’s
general meeting and the Board of Directors considered and approved plans to issue RMB30 billion of preferred shares
and RMBS50 billion of secondary capital bonds. So far, RMB30 billion of preferred shares have been issued. Upon the
implementation of the above capital replenishment plan, the Company’s capital strength will be further increased, and its
ability to resist risks and serve the real economy will be further enhanced.

In 2018, the Company continued to implement a capital-efficient operational and management mode. Based on the
annual business operation plan, the Company’s capital retaining abilities and its assets and liabilities management
strategy, the Company has reasonably arranged and controlled the bank-wide risk-weighted assets scale. The Company
continued to optimize risk-weighted asset quota allocation and control mechanism, as well as the assessment of rates
of return on capital on each branch or subsidiary, thereby reasonably adjusting the asset structure and promoting
coordinated development of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet businesses. More emphasis is placed on the
effective use of capital and the value creation of unit risk-weighted asset inputs to ensure a stable return on capital.

2. Implementation of the New Capital Accord

Since the official issuance of the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional), the Company has steadily and
orderly advanced various implementation tasks. At present, a relatively complete first pillar framework system under the
New Capital Accord has been constructed, which has effectively improved the risk and capital management capability.

In terms of policy system construction, the Company has established a relatively complete organizational framework
and institutional framework under the New Capital Accord, covering such areas as capital adequacy ratio management,
internal rating management, exposure classification, slow mitigation determination, model measurement, system
verification, rating application, stress testing, and data governance. The Company continued to carry out internal training
to cultivate the business philosophy of restricting risk with capital and promote the implementation of the New Capital
Accord system.

In terms of project implementation, the Company has launched non-retail internal rating, retail internal rating, credit risk-
weighted assets (RWA) and market risk management systems. It has completed the optimization of retail internal score
pooling model, pre-production verification and system deployment. Also, it has completed the optimization of the non-
retail internal rating model and pre-production verification, and started the third-phase system upgrade.

In terms of the application of measurement tools, the Company continued to promote the application of internal rating
results. Core applications mainly included authorization management, credit approval, industry limit management, and
customer quotas. Advanced applications mainly included risk-adjusted return on capital (RAROC), capital measurement
model construction, risk impairment test for credit assets, stress test, asset quality management, risk preference setting,
comprehensive evaluation and provision, risk capital allocation management under the internal evaluation method and
risk alert model for credit assets.
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3. Capital adequacy ratio

Unit: RMB million

Item December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Total capital 578,414 527,191
1. Core Tier 1 capital 441,197 392,199
2. Other Tier 1 capital 25,970 25,935
3. Tier 2 capital 111,247 109,057
Capital deductions 832 1,074
1. Amount of deduction from core Tier 1 capital 832 774

2. Amount of capital instruments mutually possessed by two or more
than two commercial banks under agreement, or amount of capital
investment taken by CBRC as watered capital that should be deducted
from corresponding regulatory capital

3. The part of small amount minority capital investment of financial
institutions not consolidated exceeding 10% of the core Tier 1 net - -
capital that should be deducted from corresponding regulatory capital

4. The part of large amount minority capital investment of financial
institutions not consolidated exceeding 10% of the core Tier 1 net - -
capital that should be deducted from corresponding core Tier 1 capital

5. The part of other Tier 1 capital investment and Tier 2 capital

investment in large amount minority capital investment of financial 300
institutions not consolidated that should be deducted from

corresponding regulatory capital

6. The part of net deferred tax assets exceeding 10% of the core Tier
1 net capital based on the future profit of commercial banks that was - -
deducted from core Tier 1 capital

7. The part of the total of large amount minority capital investment
of financial institutions and corresponding net deferred tax assets
exceeding 15% of the core Tier 1 net capital that was not deducted from
core Tier 1 capital

42

Net capital 577,582 526,117
Minimum capital requirement 378,745 345,381
Reserve capital and counter-cyclical capital requirement 118,358 107,932
Additional capital requirement - -
Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (before consolidation) (%) 9.03 8.86
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (before consolidation) (%) 9.61 9.50
Capital adequacy ratio (before consolidation) (%) 12.01 12.10
Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (after consolidation) (%) 9.30 9.07
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (after consolidation) (%) 9.85 9.67
Capital adequacy ratio (after consolidation) (%) 12.20 12.19

(1) The table above and data hereof were prepared in accordance with relevant requirements in the Notice of China

Banking Regulatory Commission on New CAR Reporting, with the capital adequacy ratio.

The calculation range for the consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the Company included the Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.
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and financial institutions complying with requirements on the calculation range of the consolidated capital adequacy
ratio in Section |, Chapter Il of the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional). To be specific, this applied to the
banking group jointly comprised of Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Industrial Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., China Industrial
International Trust Limited, CIB Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Industrial Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.

(2) The Company adopted the weighting approach for credit risk measurement. As at the end of the reporting period,
under the off-site regulation reporting system of CBIRC, the Company recorded total consolidated overdue loans of
RMB61,740 million and total NPLs of RMB48,439 million, the balance of actual accrued provision for loan impairment
was RMB98,757 million, the book value of long-term equity-interest investment was RMB3,224 million, the total credit
risk exposure was RMB7,189,897 million, and the credit risk weighted assets reached RMB4,322,530 million, up 9.04%
year-on-year, among which the balance of securitized assets was RMB142,203 million, the credit risk exposure was
RMB141,849 million and the credit risk weighted assets reached RMB57,985 million.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company adopted the standard approach for market risk measurement. The
amount of market risk-weighted assets was RMB10,680 million, which was 12.5 times of the total market risk capital
requirement of RMB133,494 million.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company adopted the basic indicator approach for operating risk measurement.
The amount of operating risk-weighted assets was RMB22,263 million, which was 12.5 times of the total operating risk
capital requirement of RMB278,291 million.

4. Leverage ratio

As at the end of the reporting period, in accordance with the Measures for the Administration of the Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks, the information about the Company’s leverage ratio is as follows:

Unit: RMB million

ltem December 31,2018 September 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018
Net Tier 1 capital 466,335 454,789 437,227 436,305
Balance of on- and off-balance sheet 7,617,291 7516220 7,374,858 7,168,455
assets after adjustment

Leverage ratio (%) 6.12 6.05 5.93 6.09

5. Liquidity coverage ratio

As at the end of the reporting period, in accordance with the Measures for Information Disclosure regarding Liquidity
Coverage of Commercial Banks, information about the Company’s liquidity coverage ratio was as follows:

Unit: RMB million

Item December 31, 2018
Qualified high-quality current assets 9,571.42
Net cash outflow during the next 30 days 6,737.05
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 142.07

In accordance with the Regulatory Requirements for Information Disclosure on Capital Composition of Commercial
Banks and the Administrative Measures on the Leverage Ratio of Commercial Banks, the Company further disclosed
detailed information such as the table of capital composition, the descriptions of relevant items, key features of the capital
instruments and leverage ratio in the reporting period. Please refer to the Investor Relations column at our website (www.
cib.com.cn) for details.
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lI. Discussion and analysis on future development

(I) Industrial pattern and trends

In 2019, the operating environment of commercial banks is still complicated, the policy bottom is basically clear, but the
economic bottom and market bottom are still uncertain. There are both the general challenges brought about by the
economic slowdown and the structural opportunities arising from policy relaxation. Specifically:

Firstly, the economic growth rate declines first and then stabilizes. Looking outward, it is expected that the Fed will
continue to raise interest rates, Europe will start a rate hike process, and emerging markets will face greater pressure of
capital outflow, which will have negative impact on China’s economic development and financial market stability. Looking
inward, China is still in the period of transition between new and old drivers, and the risk prevention and deleveraging
policies issued in the previous stage still impose many constraints on the market entities. China-US trade frictions
present great uncertainties. Real estate investment, manufacturing investment, exports, and consumption growth are
expected to slow down. At the same time, effects of policy adjustment will gradually be released, to the benefit of the
economic growth. As a result, it is expected that China’s GDP will decline slightly from 2018, showing a trend of declining
first and then stabilizing. This will pose challenges for business management work of commercial banks such as business
development and risk prevention and control.

Secondly, regulatory policies slightly relax though remain stringent. The basic condition of risk prevention and strict
regulation will continue. Moreover, faced with economic growth pressure, economic and financial policies are expected to
be continuously adjusted and improved, including: comprehensive and rapid de-leveraging will be shifted to structural de-
leveraging and stabilizing leverage; fiscal policies are expected to become more pro-active; the Central Bank will reduce
the deposit reserve ratio by such means as target reserve ratio reduction through inclusive financing, reserve ratio
reduction, MLF, and TMLF to drive the transition from “relaxing currency” to the “relaxing credit”, allowing the exchange
rate to fluctuate to a larger extent to release the depreciation pressure; the financial regulation policy will be more gradual
and pragmatic; and the policies issued will focus on “compensating for shortcomings” in compliance with international
regulatory rules. Commercial banks are gradually getting out of the bottom of the policy impacts. They meet the basic
conditions for steady development, and are expected return to rationality with the help of policies and achieve better
development of some businesses.

Thirdly, changes in the financial market give rise to opportunities. Given the above economic and policy situation,
liquidity is expected to remain reasonably abundant. However, against the backdrop of financial disintermediation and
de-leveraging, the “shortfall” in deposits is even more pronounced. The overall market interest rate may drop slightly
compared to 2018. The short-term interest rate is basically in place, the term spreads have declined, and the credit
spreads have improved overall. At the same time, interest rate gap between China and the US may “be inverted”,
increasing exchange rate fluctuation. In addition, the sentiment of the stock market is extremely pessimistic, and
underpinned by policies such as resolving the risks associated with stock pledge, the probability of future reversal will
increase. In this condition, it is expected that the price of capital will remain relatively low. It will be good opportunities for
the investment, transaction, and structure optimization of bonds. There will be more business opportunities in the foreign
exchange market and the stock market.
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(I1) Development strategy of the Company

In pro-actively response to the new economic normal of the “13th Five-Year Plan” period and the impact of the new
financial landscape on the development of banks, the Company has developed a “1234” complete strategic system
through gradually exploration, whereas “1” stands for one principal line of improvement while maintaining stability
and accelerated transformation that oriented towards light assets, light capital, and high efficiency; “2” stands for the
two major businesses — commercial banking and investment banking, with commercial banking as the main-body
and investment banking as the functional arm, carried out in a customer-oriented manner; “3” stands for the three
capabilities as a settlement bank, investment bank, and transaction bank to be continuously enhanced, emphasizing the
balanced development of various business functions. We will work hard in the field of investment banking with distinctive
characteristics and consolidate and enhance our advantages, while also remedy our shortcomings in commercial banking
sector where the foundation is weak, so that the shortcomings are overcome; and “4” stands for the four key areas —
key branches, key industries, key customers, and key products. By integrating industry resources, we will concentrate
our superior strengths and precisely allocate limited resources to key areas with high development potential and good
comprehensive returns.

(1l1) Business objectives for 2019

1. The Group’s total assets to increase by 3%-5%;
2. The balance of customer deposits to increase by approximately RMB320 billion;
3. The balance of loans to increase by approximately RMB450 billion;

4. The net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company to increase by approximately 4% year-on-year.
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lll. Business overview of the Company

(I) Business institutions

1. Overview of business units

Unit Business Address Number of Number of  Size of a_s§ets

outlets employees  (RMB million)
Head Office 154 Hudong Road, Fuzhou - 4,401 2,852,988
Financial Markets 168 Jiangning Road, Shanghai - 93 678,692
Credit Card Center 500 Lai’an Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai - 1,050 271,001
Beijing Branch é?sgi';iog:i';i%’;e” North Avenue, Chaoyang 76 2,760 554,680
Tianjin Branch 219 Yong’an Blvd., Hexi District, Tianjin 88 1,294 95,052
Shijiazhuang Branch ;m‘:‘igiggnzo“th Avenue, Qiaoxi District, 68 2,109 92,722
Taiyuan Branch 209 Fudong Street, Taiyuan 80 1,579 101,077
Hohhot Branch 5 Xing’an South Road, Xincheng District, Hohhot 45 1,363 54,909
Shenyang Branch 77 Wenhua Road, Heping District, Shenyang 44 1,321 64,162
Dalian Branch 85A Yide Avenue, Zhongshan District, Dalian 27 571 26,845
Changchun Branch 309 Changchun Avenue, Changchun 27 1,112 57,243
Harbin Branch 88 Huanghe Road, Nan’gang District, Harbin 29 977 48,433
Shanghai Branch 168 Jiangning Road, Shanghai 76 2,153 384,671
Nanjing Branch 2 Changjiang Road, Nanjing 109 3,314 297,607
Suzhou Branch ;iir:/(\)lingdun Road, Suzhou Industrial Park, 16 600 62,253
Hangzhou Branch 40 Qingchun Road, Hangzhou 108 2,543 214,140
Ningbo Branch 905 Baizhang East Road, Ningbo 33 762 40,596
Hefei Branch 99 Fuyang Road, Hefei 38 1,132 86,412
Fuzhou Branch 32 Wuyi Middle Road, Fuzhou 63 1,408 205,773
Xiamen Branch 78 Hubin North Road, Xiamen 29 1,295 106,612
Putian Branch 22 Xueyuan South Road, Chengxiang District, 12 365 19,837

Putian

Sanming Branch 2;irl1criri1ri1r?g362, New Qianlong Village, Meilie District, 13 389 13,481
Quanzhou Branch Xingye Building, Fengze Street, Quanzhou 51 1,349 88,018
Zhangzhou Branch 27 Shengli West Road, Zhangzhou 20 576 32,424
Nanping Branch 399 Binjiang Middle Road, Nanping 17 362 14,177
Longyan Branch 46 Jiuyi South Road, Longyan 13 432 18,728
Ningde Branch 6 Tianhu East Road, Jiaocheng District, Ningde 13 310 18,821
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Unit Business Address Number of Number of  Size of a§§ets

outlets employees  (RMB million)
Nanchang Branch é?gﬁcs?\f;%%‘;a'\:édd'e Avenue, Honggutan New 48 933 41,763
Ji’nan Branch 86 Jingqi Road, Ji'nan 112 3,141 182,349
Qingdao Branch 886 Tongan Road, Laoshan District, Qingdao 22 620 38,223
Zhengzhou Branch 288 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou 51 1,544 82,683
Wuhan Branch 108 Zhongbei Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan 69 1,444 113,722
Changsha Branch 192 Shaoshan North Road, Changsha 43 1,473 125,240
Guangzhou Branch 101 Tianhe Road, Guangzhou 132 3,705 415,317
Shenzhen Branch 4013 Shennan Boulevard, Futian District, 49 1,615 276,368

Shenzhen
Nanning Branch 146 Minzu Boulevard, Qingxiu District, Nanning 31 1,144 61,060
Haikou Branch 7 Jinlong Road, Longhua District, Haikou 12 434 19,820
Chongging Branch E)i:t'r‘i’;?gﬁsn”ggqifg°ad’ Honggihegou Jiangbei 63 1,199 116,284
Chengdu Branch 936 Shijicheng Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu 120 1,950 118,413
Guiyang Branch 45 Zhonghua South Road, Guiyang 15 691 23,324
Kunming Branch 363 Jinbi Road, Xishan District, Kunming 28 889 39,082
Xi'an Branch 1 Tangyan Road, Xi'an 79 1,268 94,120
Lanzhou Branch 75 Qingyang Road, Chengguan District, Lanzhou 15 387 12,308
Xining Branch 54 Wusi West Road, Xining 4 257 15,683
Urumgi Branch 37 Renmin Road, Urumgqi 40 775 49,371
Yinchuan Branch ifngcﬁ:::ghai West Road, Jinfeng District, 5 181 5.044
Lhasa Branch 6.Ya.ngdao Road, Taiyang Island, Chengguan y 04 2394
District, Lhasa

Hong Kong Branch 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong 1 295 181,839
Netting and summation adjustment within the system (1,966,329)
Total 2,032 59,659 6,549,432

Note: Data in the table above do not include subsidiaries. Only Tier 1 branches (sorted by the administrative regions) which were in
operation as at the end of the reporting period are listed in the table above, while data of Tier 2 branches and other sub-branches

are included in the data of Tier 1 branches according to the management structure.
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2. Overview of major subsidiaries

Unit: RMB million

Operating  Operating

Name of subsidiary Registered capital Total assets  Net assets . > Net profit
income profit

Industrial Bank Financial 9,000 128,135 15,361 2,850 1,852 1,386

Leasing Co., Ltd.

China I.nd.ustrlal International 5,000 37,605 17,542 3,502 1,806 1,360

Trust Limited

CIB Fund Management 1,200 3,264 2,752 1,007 521 414

Co., Ltd.

Industrial Consumer Finance 1,200 22,262 1,044 2.448 651 512

Co., Ltd.

(1) Industrial Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

Industrial Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with registered capital of RMB9
billion. Business scope includes financial leasing, selling and buying of financial leasing asset, fixed-income security
investment, acceptance of lessee’s lease deposits, setting up project companies in domestic bonded areas to engage in
finance lease business, among others.

As at the end of the reporting period, Industrial Leasing has total assets of RMB128.135 billion and total liabilities of
RMB112.775 billion. Owners’ equity amounted to RMB15.361 billion. Total leasing assets on balance sheet amounted to
RMB115.132 billion, which included RMB109.775 billion financing leasing assets and RMB5.357 billion operating leasing
assets. During the reporting period, operating income was RMB2.850 billion, operating profit was RMB1.852 billion, and
the net profit after tax was RMB1.386 billion.

Industrial Leasing has focused on key business areas that it specializes in. It has enhanced environmental impact
database for the green leasing projects, allocated more resources to green leasing business, and promoted the building
of a green leasing business structure. During the reporting period, Industrial Leasing has completed 37 green leasing
projects with a total value of RMB9.12 billion. As at the end of the reporting period, Industrial Leasing has RMB47.7
billion worth of green leasing assets. Industrial Leasing continued to promote the aviation leasing business. When further
exploring domestic market, Industrial Leasing achieved a breakthrough in overseas market. It has signed operating
leasing agreements for five Q400 aircrafts with SpiceJet. Industrial Leasing also actively explored the possibility of
building a strategic alliance for asset pool trading, and laid a sound foundation for global development of its aviation
leasing business.

Industrial Leasing strengthened its coordination with other group members and strived to facilitate the overall
development of the Group. In line with the group strategy of “four priorities” and “commercial bank + investment bank”,
Industrial Leasing has explored markets with local characteristics and refined its professional positioning in the leasing
market. It worked with other group members to provide integrated financial service to key customers from key industries.
In addition, Industrial Leasing strengthened its cooperation with other industries as well as peers in the leasing industry.
It focused on industrial leaders and leasing companies with industrial background or professional characteristics, so as to
serve the key customers of the group and facilitate the transformation in the real economy.

Industrial Leasing has raised funds from diversified channels. First, Industrial Leasing focused on capital borrowing, and
used capital lending as a complementary tool. It enriched its trading operations and built an RMB and foreign currency-
denominated trading system with diversified counterparties. Industrial leasing also strengthened liquidity management
so as to ensure it can repay funds at critical time and its projects’ capital demand can be met. Second, Industrial
Leasing actively promoted the diversification of its counterparties, channels and products. It actively sought nonbanking
counterparties, and strived to cover all state-owned banks, policy banks, joint-stock banks, major municipal commercial
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banks, rural commercial banks, foreign banks and some nonbanking financial institutions. Third, Industrial Leasing
has adopted the principle of sharing concepts, complementing each other and achieving win-win results in the asset
trading operations. It traded leasing assets with financial leasing companies that are controlled by central government-
owned enterprises or large financial groups, have strong core businesses and are able to generate synergies with their
parents. Fourth, Industrial Leasing managed to make progress in the capital market business. During the reporting
period, Industrial Leasing issued three tranches of financial debts with a total amount of RMB10 billion, and a three-year
syndicated loan with an amount of USD80 million. These moves strongly supported business development of Industrial
Leasing.

(2) China Industrial International Trust Limited

China Industrial International Trust Limited is a holding subsidiary of the Company with a registered capital of RMB5
billion and the Company holds 73% of the capital contribution. The business covers fund trust, movable property trust,
immovable property trust, negotiable securities trust, other property or property right trust and other businesses stipulated
by laws and regulations or approved by the CBIRC.

Industrial Trust has insisted on the strategy of improving efficiency, promoting transformation, adjusting structure and
preventing risks. It actively shifted back to the very basic business model of trust companies, and enhanced its risk
management. It vigorously promoted the active management business and steadily cut the scale of its passage business,
thereby further advancing business transformation and structure adjustment, and enhancing the abilities of serving
the real economy. Industrial Trust saw steady improvement in its business performance. As at the end of the reporting
period, Industrial Trust’s fixed assets amounted to RMB37.605 billion, up 4.47% from the beginning of the period, owners’
equity was RMB17.542 billion, up 5.12% from the beginning of the period, and the asset under management was
RMB891.299 billion. During the reporting period, the realized revenue was RMB3.592 billion, the realized total profit was
RMB1.806 billion, and the net profit was RMB1.360 billion. Asset quality remained stable and all indicators met regulatory
requirements.

During the reporting period, Industrial Trust continued to shift towards the active management business, and the
proportion of the collective trust business continued to increase and Industrial Trust's business mix continued to optimize.
As at the end of the reporting period, the business size of subsisting
trust of Industrial Trust reached RMB725.625 billion, with collective
trust business accounting for 39.47%, up 7 percentage points from the
beginning of the period. During the reporting period, Industrial Trust
becomes the first trust company that is allowed to underwrite the new
nonfinancial corporate debt financing vehicles by the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors. Industrial Trust
commenced many innovative trust businesses, including the industry’s
first note products backed by actively-managed assets. Such efforts
lowered the direct financing thresholds and funding costs of small
businesses, and protected investors’ rights and interests. In addition,
Industrial Trust actively built green trust brand, and continued to
promote business innovation. The size of its green trust business
continued to grow and asset returns further hiked. As at the end of the

reporting period, Industrial Trust’s subsisting green trust assets
reached RMB59.671 billion, up 20.09% from the beginning of the
period. In addition, Industrial Trust started to fully standardize the
open-ended cash management product Yuanfeng according to the
new rules governing asset management business of China. As at the HE tHE AW ER
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end of the reporting period, the subsisting assets of Yuanfeng
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amounted to RMB8.220 billion, up 281.70% from the end of June 2018 when the standardization project was completed.

(3) CIB Fund Management Co., Ltd.

With a registered capital of RMB1.2 billion, of which the shareholding of the Company reaches 90%, CIB Fund
Management Co., Ltd., a holding subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in fundraising, sales agency services,
asset management for specific clients, asset management and other business as permitted by the CSRC. As at the
end of the reporting period, CIB Fund has established 15 branches across the nation, including Shanghai, Beijing and
Shenzhen as well as the wholly-owned fund subsidiary CIB Wealth Management Co., Ltd.

During the reporting period, CIB Fund witnessed smooth development with respect to various businesses, with its market
image and brand position continuously improving. As at the end of the reporting period, the total assets of CIB Fund
reached RMB3.264 billion, representing an increase of 14.97% as compared to the beginning of the period; owner’s
equity was RMB2.752 billion, representing an increase of 49.08% as compared to the beginning of the period. During
the period, it recorded operating revenue of RMB1.097 billion, net profit of RMB414 million and a ROE of 18.02%. Total
asset scale under management at the end of the reporting period was RMB378.833 billion, of which mutual fund reached
RMB164.769 billion. Size of specific accounts of the fund company reached RMB32.077 billion, and size of specific
accounts of the branch companies reached RMB181.988 billion.

CIB Fund has adhered to the strategic goal of “focusing on market demand, pursuing innovation, delivering sound
performance and ensuring compliance”. It has focused on enhancing its expertise, operated in a market-oriented manner
and strived to differentiate its businesses. Moreover, CIB Fund actively shifted back to the basic business model of
fund companies, promoted its business transformation, enhanced active management capabilities and accelerated
its development in equity businesses. During the reporting period, CIB Fund launched the first equity fund and was
granted the approval to issue ETF equity funds and pension target FOF funds, which enabled CIB Fund to establish a
foothold in equity fund, index fund and FOF fund businesses, and further enrich its product portfolio. In addition, CIB
Fund has facilitated the implementation of the Group’s “commercial bank + investment bank” strategy, and has initiated
joint equity investment business with corporate partners, and built a three-party joint operation platform for capitals,
products and funds. By doing this, CIB Fund established a sound cooperation mode and achieved steady business
development. During the reporting period, CIB Fund undertook 16 projects, including the commencement of projects with
J&H Biotechnology and Shenzhen Capital Group. In addition, it broadened the capital raising channels for equity assets
of the Group. In line with the strategy of “four priorities”, CIB Fund strengthened its cooperation with other members of
the Group. Through convertible bonds, exchangeable bonds and ABS, CIB Fund engaged in a loan-investment joint
operation mechanism where investors can help investees get loans and lenders can help borrowers get investments.
By doing this, CIB Fund helped enrich the product portfolio of the Group. CIB Fund also actively cooperated with key
customers of the Group, focused on key industries and strengthened its ties with key branches. It cooperated with listed
industry leaders with strong performances and their shareholders to establish merger & acquisition funds.

(4) Industrial Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.

Industrial Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. is a controlling subsidiary of the Company. It has a registered capital of RMB1.2
billion, of which the Company had a stake of 66%. It is engaged in provision of personal finance loans, deposit-taking
from shareholders’ domestic subsidiaries as well as domestic shareholders, lending to domestic financial institutions,
issuance of financial debts, domestic interbank lending, advisory and agency services related to consumer finance, fixed
income securities investment and other business approved by the former CBRC.

Industrial Consumer Finance has strived to build strong creditability and offer loans with high integrity standards. It has
aligned itself with China’s policy of consumption upgrading and the latest development trend in the consumer finance
industry. Through various measures, Industrial Consumer Finance managed to enhance its core competency. As at the
end of the reporting period, Industrial Consumer Finance has total financial assets of RMB22.262 billion. During the
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reporting period, Industrial Consumer Finance recorded an operating income of RMB2.448 billion and a net profit of
RMB512 million. Industrial Consumer Finance has strived to expand both online and offline. It has leveraged the network
of the Company to expand nationwide, and strengthened its cooperation with community branches. Since its opening,
Industrial Consumer Finance has referred nearly 400,000 debit card customers to the Company. Meanwhile, Industrial
Consumer Finance has actively promoted its Internet finance business. It started from the “Kong Shou Dao” APP and
created a series of convenient online products, which supplemented its offline operations.

Industrial Consumer Finance continued to revamp its risk management
mechanism. It focused on building a full-process risk management

system that covers processes before, during and after lending. First,
Industrial Consumer Finance standardized the work procedures, and

required in-house customer managers to inspect and visit in person, ﬂ’!;ri" ﬂﬁtigag;l‘ 5
Wl b

-
and talk and sign face to face. The offline operation has not detected

any identity fraud until now. Second, Industrial Consumer Finance
jointly used the traditional and emerging credit information. It attached
high importance to application of frontline risk control technologies,
and used machine learning algorithm to improve model development
technologies and construct automatic loan approval system, which
enhanced approval efficiency and risk-adjusted returns.

During the reporting period, Industrial Consumer Finance completed
capital increase, and managed to grow its registered capital to RMB1.2
billion. In addition, Industrial Consumer Finance actively explored
other financing channels. First, it was allowed to enter the interbank
lending market, and successfully raised the first syndicated loan with
a total amount of RMB933 million. Second, it made breakthroughs in
asset securitization business. In December, it issued the first ABS with
the value of RMB1.925 billion.

Other Important Subsidiaries

(5) Industrial Futures Co., Ltd.

China Industrial Futures Limited is a holding subsidiary of the Company with a registered capital of RMBO0.5 billion.
Business scope includes: commodity futures brokerage, financial futures brokerage, futures investment consulting and
asset management business. Industrial Futures is a member of Shanghai Futures Exchange, Zhengzhou Commodity
Exchange, Dalian Commodity Exchange and Shanghai International Energy Exchange, and is also a transaction
settlement member of China Financial Futures Exchange.

During the reporting period, Industrial Futures demonstrated strong growth momentum, and further enhanced its
industrial positions and reputation in the market. In terms of aggregate customers’ equity value, Industrial Futures ranked
No.32 among the 149 futures companies nationwide. As at the end of the reporting period, Industrial Futures has total
assets of RMB3.952 billion, up 16.86% year on year. Its aggregate customers’ equity amounted to RMB3.315 billion, up
13.71% year on year.

Industrial Futures adhered to the operating principles of “high starting points, standardization, first-class services and
customer-oriented”. On the back of the advantages of its banking parent, Industrial Futures focused on its core business
of traditional brokerage, and further promoted the business of risk management, asset management and financial futures.
It strengthened risk management, advocated investing in a scientific manner, operated in a standardized way and
managed in a strict style. It has strong reputation and is one of the relatively influential futures companies in the market.
At present, Industrial Futures has established a wholly-owned risk management subsidiary - Industrial Yinxin Capital
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Management Co., Ltd. It has 17 branches, including subsidiaries in Shanghai, Beijing, Zhejiang, Fujian, Guangdong,
Shenzhen, Henan, Dalian, among others, and 5 Futures Business Departments and Asset Management Departments
directly managed by the Head Office. It has built a nationwide presence in major economic centers of China and
established footholds in areas that it specializes in. In addition, Industrial Futures has effectively integrated technological,
R&D, trading, compliance and internal control resources, and explored futures brokerage, investment advisory, asset
management, risk management, internationalization and other innovative businesses. It is moving towards its goal of
becoming a leading national integrated financial derivative services operator and provider.

(6) CIB Economic Research and Consulting Co., Ltd.

CIB Research is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with a registered capital of RMBO0.6 billion. Its business
scope includes: researches on macro economy, asset allocation strategy, fixed income, overseas studies, green finance,
exchange rate and commodities, fund research, equity research, industry research, credit rating and research services in
other areas.

CIB Research adhered to the principle of “creating value through researching”. It focused on financial asset pricing and
continuously enhanced its researching capabilities. It also consistently enhanced its product portfolio. Internally, CIB
Research strived to facilitate the transformation and development of the Group, and actively provided research support
for the Company’s development strategy of “commercial bank + investment bank”. Externally, CIB Research has served
other market players and strived to provide professional and quality research services and products based on the
practices of China’s financial reform and development. During the reporting period, CIB Research has provided various
research and product support for internal customers. It carried in-depth analysis into key issues such as group strategy,
transformation of asset management business, coordinated development of subsidiaries, among others. Based on such
analysis, CIB Research provided various topical research reports and strategies. Externally, CIB Research entered
into cooperation agreements with over 70 customers, including banks, non-banking financial institutions, government
agencies, businesses and other market participants. These efforts made CIB Research an even more influential player in
the industry and enhanced CIB Research’s brand reputation.

CIB Research further transformed its products and services. It teamed up with Shanghai Clearing House (SCH) to
launch CIB Research SCH 3-5 Years Middle to High-Grade Select Credit Bond Index. This is the first credit bond index
that incorporates the internal credit ratings of a third party. CIB Research has accelerated the construction of its credit
product system. It seized market opportunities, acted with foresight and managed to build a comprehensive, multi-layer
and standardized credit product and service portfolio that is accessible to all debt issuers in the market. It also actively
organized on-site company visits to key regional debt issuers, thereby facilitating the communication between enterprises
and capital market, and better serving the real economy.

CIB Research grasped the development trends in financial market. In response to customers’ demand, CIB Research has
issued about 2,000 research reports, including about 1,000 highly customized reports and over 740 VIP reports. These
reports covered areas including macro-economic conditions, asset-liability strategy, credit rating, fixed income, exchange
rates and precious metals, green finance, industry researches and others. CIB Research’s green finance research team
prepared and issued CIB Green Finance Prosperity Index (GPI) to reflect the first-hand information in development of
green industry and provide guidance for development of green finance business in financial institutions. CIB Research’s
exchange rate and precious metal research team focused on predicting exchange rate trends, and managed to identify
the inflection points in RMB/USD exchange rates, crude oil prices and gold prices. The team has formulated VIP reports
that forecast market trends, and built a research chain that projects market trends, interprets policies and introduces
related products. CIB Research’s asset-liability strategy research team focused on studying banks’ asset-liability
management, and constructed an analysis system that covers liability and liquidity management, capital management
and asset allocation. CIB Research’s fixed income research team has correctly forecasted the market movements and
corrections in the bond market, and thus enhanced its reputation and became an influential player in the fixed income
field.
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(7) CIB FINTECH (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

CIB FINTECH (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. is a holding subsidiary of the Company with a registered capital of RMBO0.5 billion.
Business scope includes financial data cloud service and open bank integrated financial services. CIB FINTECH is a
pioneer in fintech, and has established two major development courses since its establishment. The first is continuously
developing and building a strong financial cloud so as to provide comprehensive financial cloud services for small and
medium-sized banks and non-banking financial institutions. The second is to make breakthroughs and innovate so as
to build an open banking platform, and become a connecter between the “Bank End” and “Customer End” through open
banking service API and micro innovation.

CIB FINTECH's financial cloud business continued to make progress in customer base expansion and product upgrading.
As at the end of the reporting period, the financial cloud has 178 customers that operate online. In terms of customer
base expansion, the financial cloud has managed to expand its customer base from municipal commercial banks, private-
sector banks and rural banks to foreign banks, financial companies and financial leasing companies. In terms of product
upgrading, the new generation of banking information system (including core systems) is already operational at municipal
commercial banks and rural banks. In addition, CIB FINTECH has introduced disaster recovery cloud products to provide
data-level and application-level disaster recovery services to financial customers. CIB FINTECH actively took part in the
formulation of various industry standards, including the Financial Application Standards for Cloud Computing Technology
— Technology Architecture/Safety Technology Requirements/Disaster Recovery (issued by the Financial Standards
Committee) and the Reliable Financial Cloud Services — Banks (issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology), among others.

In terms of innovative businesses, the open banking platform has provided 72 API services to external customers, which
involved users, accounts, information, payment, security, socializing, wealth management, among others. These open
APIs were connected to business ecosystems and generated new accounts, settlement deposits and other benefits for
the Group and customers. As at the end of the reporting period, the open banking platform has completed 135 million
transactions, which had a total value of RMB154.4 billion and introduced 179,400 customers to the bank-end. CIB
FINTECH is also making breakthroughs in RPA (robotic process automation). It has developed over 10 process robots
that generate good benefits in retail, auto finance, marketing and operational management. In addition, CIB FINTECH
has built a sharing mechanism with leading incubators, and introduced industrial and technological partners to drive
innovation. These efforts created a financial ecosystem that generates win-win results. CIB FINTECH also provided
innovative incubation advisory services to external customers.

(8) China Industrial Asset Management Co., Ltd.

China Industrial Asset Management Co., Ltd. is a holding subsidiary of the Company with a registered capital of RMB1.95
billion. Industrial Asset Management was registered with the approval of the People’s Government of Fujian Province
and the former CBRC on February 20, 2017, and has the qualification to massively acquire and dispose non-performing
assets of financial institutions as a provincial asset management company. Its business scope includes: participating
in massive acquisition, transferring and disposal of financial institutions’ non-performing assets within Fujian Province;
acquiring, transferring and disposing nonfinancial institutions’ non-performing assets; debt restructuring and corporate
restructuring; debt-to-equity swap, managing, investing in and disposing equity assets; bankruptcy management;
investment and asset management; asset securitization; fund custody management, among others.

During the reporting period, Industrial Asset Management adhered to the strategic goal of “building first-class integrated
special asset service provider in China”. It insisted on the operating principle of “winning by compliance and expertise”,
and ensured its business grew in a standardized manner. Thanks to its efforts, Industrial Asset Management made
breakthrough in the business of acquiring nonperforming assets, and steadily developed the business of massive disposal
of nonperforming assets. Its operating results increased at a steady and rapid pace. As at the end of the reporting period,
Industrial Asset Management has total assets of RMB13.376 billion, representing a growth of RMB3.766 billion from
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the beginning of the period. Total liabilities amounted to RMB10.234 billion, representing a growth of RMB3.662 billion
from the beginning of the period. Owners’ equity hit RMB3.142 billion, representing a growth of RMB105 million from the
beginning of the period. During the reporting period, its operating income reached RMB182 million, total profits amounted
to RMB134 million and net profit hit RMB104 million.

Taking root in Fujian and facing the nationwide market, Industrial Asset Management will fully leverage its local
AMC license to continuously explore the non-performing assets disposal business. Industrial Asset Management
reinforced its role as a “financial stabilizer and safety network” for local economic development, and solidified its
leading position in regional market. During the reporting period, Industrial Asset Management acquired a total of
41 non-performing asset debt packages with a total debt value of RMB15.516 billion. As at the end of the reporting
period, it held 44 non-performing asset debt packages with a total debt value of RMB19.137 billion, increasing by
23 and RMB6.838 billion from the beginning of the period, respectively. During the reporting period, Industrial Asset
Management acquired 19 primary-market non-performing asset packages in Fujian Province, with a debt principal
of RMB6.71 billion. Industrial Asset Management has owned nearly 30% share in Fujian market, which is one of the
highest in the region.

(II) Business analysis
1. Customer lines

Corporate finance business

(1) General information

The corporate finance business has followed the Chinese government’s requirements of “stabilization in six aspects”, and
centered on the basic keynote of progressing steadily. It

implemented the strategy of “1234” by exploring new

markets and improving internal management. These

efforts promoted development in all aspects of the s 0,

corporate finance business. First, the business’ assets 2R B M E B4 Ef &

and liabilities increased in a balanced manner. As at the
end of the reporting period, the corporate deposits
amounted to RMB2,772.903 billion, increasing by
RMB114.415 billion from the beginning of the period.
Corporate loans reached RMB1,771.182 billion, increasing
by RMB249.241 billion from the beginning of the period.
Second, the business’ customer base expanded and

customer quality improved. As of the end of the reporting
period, the corporate finance business has a total of
704,000 customers, up by 83,100 from the beginning of
the period. The corporate finance business’ value and
core customers aggregated at 96,000, up by 14,000 from
the beginning of the period. The customer mix has met the

regulatory requirements of “two increases and two
controls”. The small business loan customers in the
inclusive finance business aggregated at 36,000, up by
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10,200 from the beginning of the period. Third, the L e b it @ ;‘i,"l_l'iﬂiif
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corporate finance business stepped up its efforts in e e P ol el

exploring key business areas. During the reporting period,
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the business issued RMBG60 billion green finance debts in domestic market, and USD938 million green bonds in overseas
markets. It is the biggest green bond issuer in the market. The corporate finance business also made breakthroughs in
the note financing business. All 43 branches of the Company completed the digitalization of electronic note financing
operation. The supply chain finance business expanded its scale, and characteristic branches set good examples. The
corporate finance business also enhanced its image as a facilitator of “smart city” building, and significantly expanded its
business coverage in this regard. The cross-border settlement amount also increased significantly, and related product
portfolio was further enhanced.

(2) Large customer business

During the reporting period, the large customer business focused on building a sound customer service system,
expanding its customer base, enhancing customer quality, and strengthening its presence in key industries. The large
customer business completed all operating goals and laid a sound foundation for the transformation of the corporate
finance business.

First, customer number steadily increased. As at the end of the reporting period, the number of large corporate customers
reached 39,799, up by 3,669 from the beginning of the period. The number of subsidiaries of Head Office-level key
customers that cooperated with the Company reached 8,249, up by 799 from the beginning of the period. 2,952 companies
that are already or plan to be listed were cooperating with the Company, up by 275 from the beginning of the period.

Second, the large customer business established the strategic customer center, which optimized the operational and
organizational structure of the large customer business. In addition, the large customer business optimized the key
corporate customer screening standards, expanded the screening scope of customers, implemented a budget-based
management and launched key products. The large customer business kept strengthening its cooperation with large
customers, especially key customers. As at the end of the reporting period, large customer corporate loans (including
discounted bills) reached RMB876.383 billion, increasing by RMB111.412 billion from the beginning of the period.
Daily average deposits of subsidiaries of Head Office-level key customers reached RMB496.954 billion, increasing by
RMB114.197 billion from the beginning of the period. Corporate loans (including discounted bills) reached RMB385.729
billion, increasing by RMB32.871 billion from the beginning of the period. Daily average deposits of listed or to-be-listed
companies that cooperated with the Company reached RMB197.486 billion, increasing by RMB48.707 billion from the
beginning of the period. Financing balance reached RMB346.657 billion, increasing by RMB96.209 billion from the
beginning of the period.

Third, the large customer business achieved steady growth in institutional business and auto finance business through
special marketing campaigns. The institutional business for the first time was granted the qualification to act as a centralized
payment agency for the central government’s national treasury. It has actively explored the agency business and strived
to serve downstream customers. In the institutional business, the Company adopted marketing sand-tables for different
customer categories. It adopted precision marketing measures for existing and new customers, including business bidding,
system promotion, among others. This boosted the marketing efficiency and ensured high quality growth in liabilities. As at
the end of the reporting period, the Company has 26,850 institutional customers, increasing by 2,082 from the beginning
of the period. Daily average deposits reached RMB 692.979 billion, increasing by RMB61.760 billion from the beginning of
the period. In the auto finance market, the Company strengthened marketing activities targeting key customers, accelerated
the use of customized products for auto finance and promoted construction and development of “Xing Che Rong” platform.
The Company is cooperating with key passenger vehicle makers, dealership groups, auto part makers, commercial vehicle
makers and important construction machinery makers in China in the financial field. The Company achieved strong growth
in each business indicator of the auto finance business. As of the end of the reporting period, the auto finance business has
7,895 customers, increasing by 803 from the beginning of the period. Daily average deposits reached RMB95.805 billion,
increasing by RMB12.013 billion from the beginning of the period.
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(3) Medium and small enterprise business

The business focused on middle-sized strategic partner
customers, small credit customers, as well as technological
innovation finance customers. By “building platform and sand-
tables, and stepping up marketing efforts”, the Company
ensured quality business development. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Company had 637 thousand medium
and small enterprise customers, representing an increase
of 77 thousand compared with the beginning of the period;
the balance of medium and small enterprise loans reached
RMB760.635 billion, representing an increase of RMB115.653
billion compared with the beginning of the period. Customer
number and quality continued to improve, and business size
steadily expanded.

First, the Company has enhanced the efficiency of the
customer acquisition platform according to its business focus.

The Company followed six key directions. It served supply
chain clusters, provided mortgages to industrial park and plant
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clusters, shared risks with the government and other parties,

customer acquisition platform, and established platform to

work with equity institutions to acquire customers. Thanks to
these efforts, the business’ customer acquisition channels are
optimized. As of the end of the reporting period, the Company is serving 468 small enterprise clusters, with nearly 8,000
credit customers and RMB35.109 billion loan balance. Second, the Company has made steady progress in strengthening
its cooperation with middle-sized strategic customers. It used big data technology to acquire new customers and
pursue new opportunities from its existing customer base. Leveraging the customized products for small businesses,
the Company strived to serve corporate customers who have leading positions in their niches. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Company has 1,333 middle-sized strategic partner customers, and 1,658 potential strategic partner
customers. Third, the Company shifted the business focus toward the lower tier of enterprises and enhanced its capability
of serving small businesses. It offered guidance and industry researches on key business investment, and continuously
enhanced its product portfolio. The Company also explored online financing solutions for small businesses so that it can
extend more loans to small businesses and fulfill the regulatory requirements of “two increases and two controls”. As at
the end of the reporting period, the small business loan customers in inclusive finance business aggregated at 36,000,
up by 10,200 from the beginning of the period. Loan balances amounted to RMB91.998 billion, up by RMB34.991 billion
from the beginning of the period. The loan growth rate and completion rate are among the best in the industry. Fourth,
the Company transformed its business model and continued to build a technological innovation finance service system. It
has improved its product and service system at faster paces, commenced the intellectual property pledge business, and
enhanced the products that combine investment and loans. The Company constructed the “Zhi Ma Kai Hua — Industrial
Investment” online business-matching platform, which helped technological innovation companies acquire customers
and transform business models. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has 20,200 technological innovation
finance customers, up 5,631 from the beginning of the period.

(4) Transaction bank business

The transaction bank business has continued to return to the basic nature of financial services and transform its
business model. It has strengthened its presence in bill business, supply chain finance, cross-border finance and cash
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management business. It further moved towards the goal of becoming a settlement bank. In addition, it beefed up
product innovation and optimization and strengthened its ability of serving the real economy. During the reporting period,
the transaction bank unit saw steady growth in all businesses.

As at the end of the reporting period, bill acceptance transaction amount reached RMB821.104 billion, up by RMB211.229
billion or 34.63% year on year. In terms of revenue, the bill business’ revenue was less than RMB1 billion in 2016, and
this figure exceeded RMB4 billion in 2018, realizing explosive growth. Balance of supply chain finance business reached
RMB115.899 billion, nearly four times of that in 2016. Local and foreign currency cross-border settlement amount
reached USD151.023 billion, up by USD35.86 billion or 31.14% year on year. Daily average foreign-currency deposits
of domestic enterprises reached USD21.766 billion, up by USD4.344 billion or 24.93% from the beginning of the period.
Based on data from the PBOC about foreign currency deposits and loans, the Company ranked No.1 among joint-stock
banks in terms of foreign currency deposits and loans since April 2018. Cash management customer account transaction
amount for key products reached RMB24.45 ftrillion. The Company also helped build the nationwide medical reform
system platform, and has started from the medical system in Fujian Province. The Company became the sole strategic
cooperation bank of the Medical Reform Office of Fujian Province. Number of business customers in Internet payment
business increased to 31,269 in 2018 from 3,215 in 2016, a nearly 900% growth.

(5) Green finance business

In accordance with the requirements of “becoming a first-class integrated green finance service provider and a market-
leading green finance group”, with the mid-term target of “Two Ten-Thousands” (i.e. the financing balance of green
finance reached RMBH1 trillion and the number of customers of green finance reached ten thousand) at the center,
and focusing on key areas such as the development and utilization of water resource and air pollution prevention and
treatment, solid waste disposal, rail public transportation, and green buildings, the green finance continued to strengthen
the support of finance services to ensure the healthy and rapid development of the green finance business, further
enhance its market influence and solidify its leading position in the market.

First, the green finance business developed steadily, rapidly and healthily. As at the end of the reporting period, the
balance of green finance financing was RMB844.9 billion, representing an increase of RMB164.3 billion from the
beginning of the period. The number of green finance customers was 12,143, which was 2,253 higher than that at the
beginning of the year. The approved quota of domestic green finance bonds was RMB80 billion, and RMB60 billion was
issued in the same year, with an accumulated issued amount of RMB110 billion. The total issue amount of overseas
green bonds approved USD938 million, making the Company the largest green bond issuer on the market. Second, the
green finance business provided even stronger expertise support and further enhanced its influence. The Company was
invited to join the Green Finance Standardization Working Group of China Financial Standardization Technical Committee
and the “Belt and Road” International Alliance for Green Development, and the Green Bond Standards Committee,
and became the Deputy Director of the Green Finance Cooperation Committee of the Asian Financial Cooperation
Association. It was invited to participate in the index planning and design for the inclusion of green credit into the MPA
assessment, the update of green credit guidelines standards and the development of green industry directory. It entered
into green finance strategic cooperation agreements with the governments of Gansu, Qinghai and Jilin Provinces. It
entered into green finance inter-industry cooperation agreements with several local urban commercial banks and rural
commercial banks such as Huzhou Bank and Anji Rural Commercial Bank to give full play to the professional advantages
of green finance and promote interbank business cooperation. Third, environmental benefits are more obvious. As of the
end of the reporting period, green finance support projects achieved annual savings of 29.79 million tonnes of standard
coal, the annual reduction of carbon dioxide of 84.1687 million tonnes, the annual reduction of chemical oxygen demand
(COD) of 3.9834 million tonnes, annual comprehensive utilization of solid waste of 45.4375 million tonnes, and annual
water saving of 409.7819 million tonnes. The above volume of energy-saving emission reduction is equivalent to the
closure of 193 thermal power stations of 100MW and 100 thousand taxis parking for 40 years. Fourth, brand reputation of
the Company’s green finance business achieved significant results. The Company won many awards, including the “Best
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Green Bank of the Year” by Asiamoney and “Best Green Finance” by China Banking Association. It carried out the green
finance special promotion campaign on the World Environment Day (5 June) in Hefei and Wuhan, organized “Virtuous
Benefits — Green Finance Summit Forum”, compiled and published Virtuous Benefits - Exploration and Practice of Green
Finance of Commercial Banks, and exclusive supported the charity event “Green Finance Media Workshop”.

Retail finance business

(1) General information

During the reporting period, the number of valuable retail customers increased rapidly, the scale of comprehensive
financial assets of retail customers continued to increase, the operating efficiency increased steadily, and the proportion
of retail business net operating income significantly increased. As at the end of the reporting period, the number of retail
banking customers (including credit cards) was 68.5723 million, an increase of 13.0526 million over the beginning of
the period. The balance of financial assets of retail customers totaled RMB1,771.4 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMB272.6 billion. During the reporting period, the income of the retail intermediary business was RMB26.977 billion, an
increase of 38.22% year-on-year. Net income of retail banking was RMB45.146 billion, up 26.48% year-on-year.

(2) Asset and liability management

In respect of retail liabilities, the
Company continued to give priority to
deposits, vigorously developing the T T
retail liabilities, especially statutory 4 - B % 1 i
deposit. The scale and market share
of the Company'’s retail liabilities
continued to increase. As at the end
of the reporting period, the balance of
personal deposits was RMB531.160
billion, representing an increase of
RMB101.729 billion from the beginning
of the period, of which savings
deposits amounted to RMB458.184
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RMB80.337 billion from the beginning
of the period.

In respect of retail credit business, in addition to standardizing residential mortgage loan business, the Company
continued to expand inclusive finance business. As at the end of the reporting period, the balance of personal loans
(excluding credit cards) was RMB873.750 billion, up 22.25% from the beginning of the year. The total amount of personal
loans issued during the reporting period was RMB357.533 billion, up 38.55% year-on-year.

(3) Retail wealth management business

In respect of wealth management business, the Company actively responded to new regulatory requirements and
dauntlessly innovated. It boosted the sales of bank wealth management products through net-value transformation,
focusing on both the growth of scale and sales transformation. It strengthened market analysis, actively adjusted
product supply strategy, and promoted the custody sales of funds, insurance and trust products. It also strengthened the
coordination of the product supply of the Group’s pan-wealth management businesses. As at the end of the reporting
period, the retail wealth management financial assets totaled at RMB1,280 billion, increasing by 14% year-on-year. The
retail wealth management intermediate business recorded an income of RMB5.126 billion.
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(4) Bank card business

The Company performed well in the innovation and management of debit card products, further consolidating the
personal debit card and account base, improving service quality and ensuring compliant operations. As at the end of
the reporting period, there were 52.55 million debit cards issued, an increase of 6.0160 million from the beginning of the
period. The number of debit card customers was 45.5645 million, and the per capita debit card number was 1.15. The
cumulative development of acquiring merchants was 992,200.

The Company strengthened the construction of the Internet platform and drove the rapid development of integrated
finance business with merchants. It launched WeChat public account for merchant services which supported such
functions as merchant binding, real-time push of transaction information, transaction detail inquiry, and credit card
application. It deepened the construction of the payment environment by creating a demonstration project for convenient
mobile payment to vigorously promote the application of mobile payment in the field of convenient payment. It launched
the UnionPay Standard Condensation Code product, introduced Sunmi Industry Application Platform, and completed
the upgrade of the commissioned logistics platform to maintain the competitiveness of acquiring products. During the
reporting period, the Company’s express payment product bundled a total of 26.7554 million customers, recording a
total transaction number of 1.996 billion and transaction value of RMB741.69 billion. The Company developed nearly
5.8557 million mobile payment customers of UnionPay cloud flash payment. The business indicators ranked top among
peer banks. The Company participated in the assessment of the PBOC with the branch of Fujian Province as a key
demonstration area. In the assessment, the Company’s card issue side and acquiring side in the fourth quarter of 2018
ranked first in the industry.

(5) Credit card business

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company issued 42.7128 million credit cards in aggregate, and 11.6662 million
new cards were issued during the period, up 14.10% year-on-year; and a total transaction amount of RMB1,518.495
billion was achieved during the reporting period, up 53.30% year-on-year.

Seizing the historical opportunity arising from the transformation of China’s economic growth model to a consumption-
driven model, the Company used financial technology to build the abilities of accurate customer acquisition, refine
operations and intensive operations for credit cards. Firstly, the Company relied on its “big retail” system to actively
promote the coordinated development of debit card and credit card, activate business drivers, and further explore the
construction of systems and mechanisms that were compatible with the development of financial technology and highly
integrated with the features of the credit card business. In response to customer needs and preferences, it improved the
interest-bearing product system and the scenario system, and built a business model with refined customer tiers driven
by data, achieving precise resources allocation. Secondly, the Company strengthened channel construction, optimized
the card issuance structure, and improved the ability to acquire customers through marketing. It deepened the brand
connotation of “Dynamic Life” through such activities as establishing strategic cooperation with Jingdong on “sports +
finance” brand and carry out joint marketing, and cooperated with head websites of Internet vertical segmentation such as
Mango TV and PP video on joint cards to consolidate the Company’s image of youthful vitality and as a pioneer straddling
sports and finance. It accelerated the construction of the “Hao Xing Dong” APP platform, deeply optimized the customer
journey, vigorously expanded O20 merchant scenarios, and explored the integrated business model of retail business
based on various real-life consumption scenarios. Thirdly, it adhered to the technology-driven approach and completed the
upgrade of the new generation of credit card issuing system, significantly improving system functions and performance,
and further strengthening the foundation of credit card technologies. It introduced third-party big data scoring, multiple
borrowing, real-time positioning and other Internet data products to enhance the ability of big data risk control and build
a digital multi-dimensional risk prevention and control system with linkage between the headquarters and the branches.
Fourthly, it strengthened the internal control management of compliance by carrying out key tasks such as financial
chaos management and anti-money laundering and establishing a normalized self-examination and self-correction and
supervision and rectification tracking mechanism to ensure the development of business in a compliant manner.
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(6) Private banking business @ i ‘3,€
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promoted the healthy and orderly development of private banking work
in combination with the management concept of “differentiated product
strategy + characteristic value-added services + professional consultant
driven”, achieving positive results and rapidly expanding customer base.
As at the end of the reporting period, the private banking customers was
30,590, up 33% from the beginning of the period, and the consolidated
finance assets of private banking customers amounted to RMB377.0
billion, up 16% from the beginning of the period. The balance of wealth
management products of private banking customers was RMB268.2 billion,
representing an increase of RMB57.2 billion or 27% from the beginning of
the period. Sales of trust products of private banking grew rapidly. During
the reporting period, sales of trusts to private banking customers exceeded
RMB52.8 billion, accounting for 66% of the total trust sales of the Bank.
The private banking business successfully issued private equity investment
funds, archiving a product system with diversified asset allocation.

The Company returned to the source of “entrusted asset management”
of private banking, officially launched private banking exclusive services
including family trust, Enjoyable Trust and discretionary trust. The business insisted on in-depth market researches and
used the research results to guide its asset and wealth management. It persevered in producing and publishing daily
market commentary “Si Hang Zao Zhi Dao”, and original information “Shi Shi Dian Ping” and “Shi Shi Jian Ping”, and held
many topical symposiums, interbank communications, and other events during the reporting period. It promoted the refine
management of private banking and regulated the daily work of account managers of private banking. It also streamlined
its value-added services. Under the brand element of “Affluent and Wise Life, and Accumulating Wealth Properly”, the
business rolled out four product systems, including “Angel Club”, “Gardener Club”, “Universal Life” and “Enjoyable
Life”. Together with the Italian Embassy, it launched the market-specific “Meeting on Italian Red Carpet Project” to meet
needs for convenient visa obtaining of high-end customers who traveled to and from Europe frequently for many years.
It launched overseas high-end hotel reservation services, extending and enriching the value-added services of private
banking customers. It improved the high-end professional service system of private banking and held hundreds of high-
end professional services in 40 branches, which enhanced brand reputation and customer stickiness.

(7) Channel and brand construction

The Company continued to improve the functions of self-service channels and effectively improved the operation
efficiency of the channels. On-line ATM self-service machines are equipped with a unified monitoring system, complete
intelligent counter, retail mobile marketing PAD, ATM machine and other system functions. As at the end of the reporting
period, there were 6,527 ATM machines running online and 4,864 intelligent counter machines.

The Company continued to promote innovation in retail Internet financial products. During the reporting period, mobile
banking and online banking launched three new service areas, including private banking, overseas finance, and “Users
Recommending Users”, and added a number of retail business functions and services such as courtesy certificate of
deposit, third-pillar pensions, and donation of VIP points. To support the key tasks of the retail business and with the goal
of increasing the monthly number of active customers of the Internet finance per, the Company implemented special
operations in various forms such as key recommendation, advertisement placement, transaction guidance, and white list
push on mobile banking and online banking, thereby continuously boosting customer activities in the Internet channel.
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As at the end of the reporting period, the monthly number of active customers of mobile banking was 12.5703 million,
representing an increase of 99.5% from the beginning of the period. The number of followers of “Industrial Bank” WeChat
public account was 7.713 million, representing an increase of 24.8% from the beginning of the period.

In respect of brand building, “Dynamic Life” credit card brand continued to use the Shanghai International Marathon
Series and the Youth International Football Tournament to further implement the crossover marketing strategy with
“sports, health, environmental protection and public welfare” as the entry point. It expanded the crossover cooperation
landscape by co-sponsoring the special show of the 2019 Shanghai Spring/Summer Fashion Week by the upcoming
designer SHUSHU/TONG with VISA, taking the CIB art-themed credit card products as the entry point to highlight the
characteristic proposition of the “Finance + Fashion” brand and enrich the brand connotation of “Vibrant Life”. “Universal
Life” created the first “Universal Life” one-stop international education platform in China and launched the “Belt and
Road ° Inclusive Overseas Study” personal overseas study program, combining traditional media and online media for
concerted promotion. It released the “White Paper on Job Hunting in the US for Chinese Overseas Students” through
Sina online live broadcast, thereby enhancing the influence of CIB overseas finance in the field of international education
and enhancing the brand influence of “Universal Life”. “Wealthy Life” created a sub-brand of “China’s first cultural and
creative savings product for etiquette culture — Fujin series courtesy certificate of deposit”. It promoted unified design
in outlets across China through product launches and the “Financial Start of the Chinese New Year with IB” event and
developed wealth business such as wealth management products for celebrities to build up the brand of characteristic
businesses and further enhance the brand value. At the same time, it continuously strengthened the brand’s visual
system and the promotion through all-media channels including the “Industrial Bank Wealth Management Center” public
account, increased brand influence by leveraging its rich wealth management products, professional team training and
hardware facilities, selected high-quality financial institutions, created a financial supermarket for commission sales of
quality products, continued to promote the construction of “Wealthy Life” wealth management studio, and constantly
enriched the brand connotation of “Wealthy Life”. “Enjoyable Life” continuously optimized the pension financial service
system, continuously promoted the construction of the “Enjoyable Life” College, optimized the “Enjoyable Life” club,
actively developed products such as pension savings and old-age wealth management, vigorously pushed forward the
pilot of the third pillar of pension insurance, promoted the account management business employee benefit plan, relying
on the joint efforts of the group to enhance the company’s service capability in the construction of multi-level social
pension security system.

Interbank finance business

(1) General information

During the reporting period, facing changes in external regulatory policies and financial market conditions, the Company
fully utilized its specialized operation and management system and talents, further strengthened compliant operation,
vigorously promoted business transformation and enhanced its professional service capabilities to serve interbank
customers, financial market and real economy. During the reporting period, the interbank finance business advanced
robustly.

(2) Financial institutions business

The Company divided customers into different tiers and types in service and employed a market-oriented, specialized
and refined operating strategy to serve customers and the market. The Company’s interbank finance services cover all
sectors of the financial industry, providing diversified and differentiated integrated financial service solutions for all types
of financial institutions in various industries. Meanwhile, it extends basic financial services such as settlement, deposit
management, agency receipt and payment, and agency sales to corporate and individual end customers, forming a
full-chain customer base service system. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has cooperated with peer
financial institutions such as banks, securities companies, fund companies, futures companies, trust companies, financial
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companies, financial leasing companies, financial asset management companies, and consumer finance/auto finance
companies, and established agency relationships with more than 100 banks in various countries and regions, thereby
further improving the global agency service network.

Deepening cooperation with various financial trading venues and intermediary platforms to effectively serve the financial
market. During the reporting period, the Company continuously deepened operation with the Shanghai Clearing House,
Shanghai Stock Exchange, various futures exchanges, inter-agency quotation and service systems for private offerings
and other state-approved exchanges in the agency clearing, fund settlement, system construction and other aspects.
It obtained the comprehensive clearing membership of the central counter-party clearing business of the RMB foreign
exchange inquiry transaction of Shanghai Clearing House and the qualification of approved depository bank for deposits
of overseas customers of Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange, and became the first batch of designated depository banks
of the Dalian Commodity Exchange and the first depository bank to dock the new system of the Shanghai Futures
Exchange. It launched an integrated comprehensive platform for fund management services of non-bank financial
institutions - non-bank (financial institution) fund management cloud platform, providing a package of services to enable
various non-bank financial institutions to achieve unified account management and unified fund clearing. During the
reporting period, 288 institutions were newly onlined.

(3) Bank cooperation business

The Bank-to-Bank Platform is the first financial institutions cooperation brand in China. Through the platform, the
Company provided integrated financial services to various small and medium-sized financial institutions, including
wealth management, payment settlement, technological output, asset transfer, training and consulting, cross-border
finance, capital use, capital replenishment, and investment research. As at the end of the reporting period, the number
of collaborated customers of various businesses of the Bank-to-Bank Platform was 1,906, up 43.96% year-on-year. The
platform accumulatively cooperated with 357 commercial banks in terms of establishment of information systems, among
which 221 banks managed to operate with online information systems. During the reporting period, the platform issued
a total of RMB1,161.5 billion in interbank deposits to small and medium financial institutions, and handled RMB2,708.0
billion of transactions on behalf of the People’s Bank of China’s High-Value Payment System and Bulk Electronic
Payment System, Cross-border Interbank Payment System (CIPS), unified clearing platform, and super online banking
system. QianDa Money Manager, the Internet wealth management platform introduced the wealth management products
of a total of 38 partner banks. The number of registered customers was 13.19 million. During the reporting period, sales
of financial products of QianDa Money Manager to terminal customers reached RMB489.1 billion.

With integrated financial services for small and medium financial institutions as the core, the Company promoted the
construction of “a financial technology cloud + three platforms of wealth management, asset trading, and payment and
settlement + international version”, maintaining a sound momentum of rapid development for all businesses. The platform
has become an important carrier for the linkage of the Group and the building of an integrated financial services platform
for open banks. In the field of wealth management, seizing the opportunities in the wealth management market after the
issuance of new regulations, QianDa Money Manager further consolidated its leading position as a multi-bank wealth
management sales platform. The platform expanded the cooperation with small and medium banks on “Wealth Cloud”
wealth management agency sales business, which provided strong product and system support for the transformation
of wealth management of small and medium banks. Through the technology + financial cooperation, it delivered high-
quality financial products to third- and fourth-tier cities and rural areas, enabling residents in financially underdeveloped
areas to easily access financial services and property income. This was an innovative initiative of the Company’s
differentiated implementation of inclusive finance. “Institutional investment trading platform” (http://i.yypt.com) constituted
an online portal platform for the Group to display, sell, market and trade its products to various financial institutions. As at
the end of the reporting period, the number of registered institutional customers was 1,281. In the field of payment and
settlement, agency receipt and payment product “Hui Shou Fu” industrious developed payment solutions for non-bank
financial industries such as funds, insurance, trust, and consumer finance, recording a transaction amount of RMB87.2
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billion during the reporting period. As an agent, it accesses new payment and settlement tools such as the People’s
Bank of China’s High-Value Payment System and Bulk Electronic Payment System, Cross-border Interbank Payment
System (CIPS), unified clearing platform, and super online banking system to help improve the coverage of rural financial
institutions in the payment system of the People’s Bank of China and improve payment service environment of rural
areas, accessing the unified clearing platform on behalf of over 100 banks network platform and accessing the CIPS on
behalf of 119 banks. The Company became the first bank to access CIPS on behalf of provincial rural credit cooperatives,
and provided comprehensive cross-border financial services for small and medium financial institutions, including agency
international settlement, cross-border foreign currency clearing, and cross-border investment and financing, through
cooperation of domestic and overseas members of the Group.

2. Public product line

(1) Investment banking business

The Company strove to implement the strategic layout of “commercial banking + investment banking”, actively responded
to changes in the external regulatory environment, and promoted the transformation of business into “financing +
intelligence”. Centering on the “1234” strategy of the Bank and oriented towards “returning to the essence and servicing
the real economy”, it achieved stable business development. Firstly, it consolidated the market position of non-financial
corporate debt financing instruments in the interbank market, achieving a record high for direct finance and ranking first
for both the underwriting scale and number of non-financial corporate bonds in the market. Secondly, it implemented
the “light investment bank” strategy, continued to promote the transition from “holding assets” to “managing assets”,
continued to explore key areas such as mergers and acquisitions, asset securitization, and equity investment, and
continued to explore new source of revenue. In the interbank bond market, it launched the first RMBS project that
introduced pure overseas investors through “Bond Connect”. Thirdly, it explored the establishment of a “unified sales
platform” that integrate investor resources to enhance the sales ability of large-scale assets, and led the creation of
a sales platform and sales team for investment banking products to enhance the core competitiveness of investment
banking.

As at the end of the reporting period, the underwriting scale was RMB476.28 billion for non-financial corporate debt
financing instruments and USD37.3 billion for overseas bonds. The asset-backed notes (ABN) issued was RMB13.378
billion, ranking second in the market.

(2) Asset management business

During the reporting period, with the issuance of a series of new regulations such as new asset management regulations,
new wealth management regulations, and management methods for financial subsidiaries, the regulatory system for
wealth management of banks in the new era has taken initial shape, which were of great significance for the return
of the banks’ wealth management business to its essence, the gradual and orderly break of rigid redemption, the
strengthening of the risk isolation of wealth management business, and the promotion the healthy business development.
The Company actively adapted to the regulatory situation and market changes, strengthened the development direction,
comprehensively optimized the organizational structure and business model, consolidated the business foundation,
and prevented and controlled various financial risks. As a result, the financial management scale remained stable, the
business transformation progressed in an orderly manner, and the products operated stably and were well-received
by customers. As at the end of the reporting period, the balance of the Company’s wealth management products was
RMB1,815.759 billion. In general wealth management, the balance of non-principal-guaranteed wealth management was
RMB1,224,797 billion, a year-on-year increase of 6.14%. The Company built a product framework that was “centered
on fixed income and supplemented by equity and other innovative products”. As at the end of the reporting period, the
balance of the Company’s net value product was RMB607.534 billion, a year-on-year increase of 287.88%.
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(3) Treasury business

The Company continued to consolidate the operational mechanism of centrally managing the Group’s bond investment
transactions, and formed standardized systems in strategy formulation, access standards, operation management,
and post-investment evaluation. It continued to consolidate the customer and product base for the FICC business to
further consolidate and enhance profits and customer coverage. Meanwhile, it actively implemented the strategy of
integrating investment undertaking, investment sales and investment research, and continued to promote customer base
construction and asset layout centering on key industries, so as to enhance the overall efficiency of the Group. In terms
of business innovation, subject to the new asset management regulations, the Company completed the creation of new
structured deposits. In addition, it actively responded to the call of the state to launch the over-the-counter bond business
in corporate online banking and mobile banking channels.

The Company maintained the market leading position in the areas of bonds, exchange rates and interest rates. It actively
provided liquidity, ranking first in net settlement amount of bonds at Shanghai Clearing House, third in transaction volume
of bond lending at China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd., and fourth in transaction volume of bond repurchase
of interest rate bonds in the interbank market. In terms of exchange rate, the Company ranked sixth in comprehensive
transaction volume of the exchange rate at China Foreign Exchange Trade System, and ranked first in comprehensive
market-making transaction volume of interest rate swaps. The Company will continue to optimize its asset portfolio
structure and focus on asset transfer and market-making transactions to ensure steady growth of various businesses.

(4) Asset custody business

During the reporting period, undaunted by difficulties, the asset
custody business persevered with development. All business
indicators were healthy and stable, and the market position remained
solid. As at the end of the reporting period, the number of online
custody products of the Company was 22,771, with the scale of asset
custody business totaling RMB11,606.578 billion, up RMB373.849
billion or 3.33% from the beginning of the period. During the period,
the realized total income of intermediary businesses of asset custody
reached RMB3.405 billion.

The Company innovated custody business development concept
and continued to promote business transformation and optimization.
Adapting the “custody +” concept, it strengthened the intra-group
coordination, promoted the development of custody business, and
improved service through product operation and system capacity
building. As at the end of the reporting period, the custody business
of securities investment fund products was RMB896.438 billion, up
RMB173.001 billion from the beginning of the period, the custody .
business of private asset management product was RMB540.261 i ““"“-_:,:,:_-::;:{;_" "ij‘;?jﬂ 3’
billion, up RMB20.924 billion from the beginning of the period,

the custody business of trust asset management products was

RMB2,605.064 billion, up RMB29.902 billion from the beginning of the period, the custody business of bank wealth
management products was RMB2,440.893 billion, up RMB150.878 billion from the beginning of the period, the custody

AREE mw B s S ————

business of asset management products of fund companies was RMB773.051 billion, down RMB218.059 billion from
the beginning of the period, the custody business of asset management products of securities firms’ customers was
RMB1,441.445 billion, down RMB451.617 billion from the beginning of the period and the custody business of insurance
asset management products was RMB645.795 billion, increased by RMB7.730 billion from the beginning of the period.
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3. Operation support

(1) Operation and management

Centering on the Company’s development strategy, following the development philosophy of “operation creates value”,
and with the “improving efficiency, enhancing experience, innovating development, strengthening internal control and
controlling cost” at the core, the Operation and Management Department strove to promote centralization, flattening,
intelligence, automation, factorization, standardization, and procedure organization, as well as innovative development in
addition to properly carrying out operational support and internal control security support, thereby creating an agile, fast,
safe, effective and low-cost operation management service system to support the Company’s business development.

Firstly, the coordinated management of payment services and the ability of innovative develop have been enhanced.
The service time for domestic large-value transfer business was extended to 21 hours, and the Bank became the first
of its kind in China to support the extension of the time of cross-border RMB payment for working days to 24 hours. The
Bank became the first batch in the world to launch Swift GPI direct remittances, establish a traceable mechanism for
cross-border remittances, and achieve cross-border remittances to the United States within a minimum of half a minute.
The payment settlement innovative product “IB Steward” continued to develop small and micro enterprise customers,
launched logistics financial services, built a science and technology investment and financing platform, and continued
to maintain market leading edge. It won the “Best Financial Technology Innovation Award” of the 4th Jinsong Award
presented by mpaypass.com.cn. The Company constructed a centralized and unified network payment clearing platform,
implemented the “breaking direct connection” work across the Bank, and strengthened the coordinated management of
online payment services. The Company thoroughly implemented the requirements for the reform of “delegating powers,
improving regulation, and providing better services”, launched pilot projects for canceling account licenses, optimized
account opening services for enterprises, and continued to promote light system and light process transformation
provided that the real risks were controllable, thereby effectively improving electronic and standardized account
management.

Secondly, the level of intelligence and intensification of operational support has been further enhanced. Channel
optimization and integration of process bank, construction of smart network achieved breakthrough. Channel optimization
projects for lobby services, self-service, counter operation, back-office operation and online services, and remote
customer service were basically completed. The effects of construction in targeted customer positioning, refined service
contents, enhanced channel coordination, improved service efficiency and quality gradually emerged. The intelligent
customer service access channel was further expanded. The annual traffic diversion rate increased to 18.65%,
representing an increase of 12 percentage points over the previous year. The comprehensive transformation of the tellers
was steadily advanced. The scale of tellers for corporate “Settlement Steward” and the effective referral rate for “one-
sentence marketing” for retail customers continued to increase. The depth and breadth of services of the centralized
operation sharing platform and accounting treatment sharing platform were further expanded. Through the combination
of system transformation and process optimization, scale effects such as efficiency improvement, manpower saving, and
compliance risk reduction were fully manifest.

Thirdly, the Company has established the concept of “controlling risks means creating benefits” to continuously
strengthen internal control management. The operation inspection and supervision system was implemented across
the Bank was implemented, initially forming a tiered inspection and supervision system covering the entire bank, which
specified that “the Head Office shall focuses on identifying risks, and the branches must both identify the risks and focus
on basic specifications, and the outlets focus on the basic specifications”. The construction of the two internal control
system platforms, the “Woodpecker” accounting case prevention system and accounting risk monitoring system, has
made progress, effectively improving the coverage and accuracy of internal control management through scientific and
technological means. The Company strengthened the integration and coordination between off-site and on-site inspections,
moved risk check-points forward, encouraged counters to resist major violations of regulations and disciplines in relation to
payment and settlement and intercept cases, and carried out intensive prevention and control of accounting cases, so as to
effectively eliminate risk hazards and ensure that there were no major operational risks and loss events.

65



66

INDUSTRIAL BANK

(2) Information technology

The information technology work aims at digital transformation, ensuring the unification of technology platforms and
data standards. The Company continued to promote the construction of a “safe, process-based bank, open, and smart
bank”, focusing on eight technical fields of “information security, user experience, cloud computing, big data, artificial
intelligence, blockchain, process robots, and open API”. The work has achieved positive progress and remarkable
results. The Company is committed to promoting the reform of financial technology system and mechanism, exploring
the embedded management of R&D personnel, and strengthening the integration of technology and business and
organizational innovation. It set up a Digital Center of Excellence to enhance the leading role of financial technology in
digital transformation. It invigorated the vitality of science and technology by strengthening the team and optimizing the
incentive and restraint mechanism, so as to effectively drive the transformation of science and technology from “quality
first” to “value first”.

In terms of the construction of a safe bank, the Company successfully completed the information security work at critical
time points, achieving 99.99% of availability for important systems of production transactions. By further improving the
disaster recovery system to achieve full coverage of application-level and data-level disaster recovery of important
information systems, the Company passed the 1SO22301 Business Continuity Management System Certification and
became the first in the industry to obtain the “Excellent Level” certification for the “Service Capability Maturity Model
of Data Centers for Information Technology Services”. It continuously enhanced the technical capabilities of terminal
security, network security, data encryption, monitoring and analysis, greatly improving information security protection. It
completed periodic security assessments for 146 systems and online security assessment for 86 systems, achieving full
coverage of system online security assessment.

In terms of construction of a process-based bank, paperless was achieved for a total of 331 high-frequency transaction
vouchers in relevant paperless counter projects, shortening the daily settlement time of the tellers by nearly 20
minutes. The “electronic” and “self-help” level of outlets continuously improved. The self-service projects for corporate
customers incorporated a total of 108 types of business acquiring-bills of the Head Office and the branches into the
unified acquiring-bill for centralized management, the self-printing rate of acquiring-bills reaching 97%. The capability of
analyzing data about interbank customers rapidly improved, enabling systematic measurement of the comprehensive
value of the businesses of interbank customers, thereby further expanding the depth and breadth of cooperation
with existing customers. Using the RPA process robot technology, the Company has completed the robot automated
processing of four business handling processes, such as “Automotive Financial Installment” and “IB Instant Loan White
List”, to continuously improve business efficiency and reduce labor costs.

In terms of the open bank, the Company focused on supporting the connection of the Head Office and branches with the
external ecology and continued to optimize the “Hao Xing Dong” APP. It launched the Group’s online portal “Diversified
Finance”, and promoted the rapid launch of featured products such as “IB Auto Financing”, “IB Oil Card” and “Electricity
Financing” to enable the capacity for building a “transaction-type and settlement-type” bank.

In terms of a smart bank, the Company focused on supporting the digital transformation of retail business through new
technologies such as big data and artificial intelligence, empowering such areas as risk management and control as well
as customer marketing and services. It launched a loan product named “IB Instant Loan”, which enabled retail customers
to serve themselves online throughout the entire process, creating a new-generation pre-credit extension model for
online retail credit and launching online lending business. It continued to carry out the construction and application of the
gold list series marketing model. During the reporting period, it increased the number of VIP customers by 140,000 and
the comprehensive financial assets by RMB38.6 billion. It employed biometric technologies such as face recognition and
iris recognition to build “IB Eyes”, achieving application of VIP customer identification at lobbies to support differentiated
service and targeted marketing of outlets. It provided professional technical support for the special cooperation tasks of
Blockchain ABS custody business of JD Finance. On the first day of the launch, JD Finance synchronized 800,000 sets
of asset data.
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(3) E-finance

The E-finance business actively seized new opportunities for development and further strengthened the integration and
overall management of the Group’s E-finance. Internally, it promoted the cross-channel, cross-line and cross-subsidiary
integration to consolidate the basic platform of E-finance, exerting the synergy of E-finance to help the overall Bank.
Externally, it promoted cross-platform and cross-border openness, simultaneously participating in ecology and building
ecology to build an open bank. It promoted the establishment of the Group’s online operation and service system to serve
the Group’s “1234” strategy, empower business development, and promote a comprehensive digital transformation of the
Group’s business and operation models.

As at the end of the reporting period, the number of effective customers of mobile banking was 25,511,700, an increase
of 38.31% compared with the beginning of the period; the number of effective personal banking customers was
12,980,800, an increase of 7.77% compared with the beginning of the period; the number of effective customers of
corporate and interbank online banking was 343,100, an increase of 22.84% compared with the beginning of the period;
the cumulative number of customers developed for direct banking was 2,593,400; the number of customers contracted
by IB Steward was 171,700, with a cumulative transaction amount of RMB602.77 billion; and the transaction replacement
rate of E-finance was 96.83%. The Company launched the Group’s E-finance portal “Diversified Finance”, with nearly 6
million visits. Internally, the portal provided navigation for Industrial Consumer Finance, CIB Fund, and QianDa Money
Manager to facilitate cross-selling; externally, it actively cooperated with more than 10 Internet ecosystems such as “New
Fujian” to achieve 1+N overall output of the Group’s finance.
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(111y Analysis of loan quality

1. Five-category classification of loans

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Increase/ decrease in balance at the
end of the reporting period compared

Item with that at the end of last year (%)
Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)

Normal 2,827,898 96.38 2,335,800 96.10 21.07
Special mention 60,044 2.05 56,241 2.31 6.76
Substandard 19,411 0.66 17,520 0.72 10.79
Doubtful 18,442 0.63 11,976 0.49 53.99
Loss 8,287 0.28 9,158 0.38 (9.51)
Total 2,934,082 100 2,430,695 100 20.71

As at the end of the reporting period, the balance of the Company’s NPLs stood at RMB46,140 million, up RMB7,486
million from the figure at the beginning of the period with NPL ratio of 1.57%, down 0.02 percentage point from the

beginning of the period. The balance of special mention loans was RMB60, 044 million, up RMB3,803 million from the

beginning of the period. The proportion of the special mention loans in the total loans was 2.05%, down 0.26 percentage

point from the beginning of the period. The increase in non-performing loans and special mention loans is primarily due

to the in-depth adjustment in macro economy and industry structure, complicated and challenging external environment,

as well as the continuous materialization of credit risks in individual areas and industries. The non-performing loan

balance and special mention loan balance of the Company increased, but overall NPL ratio and special mention loan

ratio declined. Asset quality was overall stable.

2. Provision for and write-off of loan impairment

Unit: RMB million

ltem Amount
Opening balance 81,864
Provision during the reporting period (+) 38,067
Write-off and transfer-out during the reporting period (-) (28,098)
Write-back during the reporting period of write-off in previous years (+) 5,009
Transfer-out due to the increase in discounted value of loan value (-) (1,287)
Changes in exchange rates (+) 82
Closing balance 95,637
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Description of method for impairment loss on loans: if loans are impaired, the carrying amount of loans is reduced to
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The amount of reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in profit or loss.
For a loan that is individually significant, the Company assesses the asset individually for impairment. For a loan that
is not individually significant, the Company assesses the asset individually for impairment or includes the asset in a
group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan, it includes the loan in a
group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively reassesses them for impairment. Loans for which
an impairment loss is individually recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. If, subsequent
to the recognition of an impairment loss on loans, there is objective evidence of a recovery in value of the loans which
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment is recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed. However, the reversal is made to the extent that the carrying amount of loan at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized. The
Company periodically assesses impairment of the loan portfolio. The Company determines whether the loan portfolio is
subject to any sign of impairment through objective evidences based on observable data indicating significant decline in
loan portfolio’s cash flow. If such decline in cash flow cannot be individually identified or single loan is insignificant, the
management will, on a collective base, estimate future cash flow of the loan portfolio based on historical losses of similar
assets. The Company periodically reviews the methodologies and assumptions adopted for estimating future cash flow
amount and timing so as to reduce the different between estimated and actual loan impairment losses.

3. Changes in overdue loans

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ftem Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)
1-90 days (inclusive) overdue 22,923 38.64 13,820 35.80
91-360 days (inclusive) overdue 25,231 42.54 12,268 31.78
361 days-3 years (inclusive) overdue 9,395 15.84 10,963 28.40
Over 3 years overdue 1,770 2.98 1,551 4.02
Total 59,319 100 38,602 100

As at the end of the reporting period, the balance of the Company’s overdue loans was RMB59.319 billion, up
RMB20.717 billion from the beginning of the period, of which overdue corporate loans increased by RMB17.870
billion and overdue personal loans increased RMB299 million respectively, and credit cards overdue increased by
RMB2.548 billion. The increase in overdue loans was mainly due to factors such as slowing economic growth, industrial
restructuring, deleveraging policies of the state and deterioration of the external environment, which led to increased
number of enterprises with declining solvency, shortage of capital, and broken capital chains.

4. Changes in restructured impairment loans

Unit: RMB million
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Item
Balance Percentage in total loans (%) Balance Percentage in total loans (%)

Restructured impairment loans 5,851 0.20 7,002 0.29
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As at the end of the reporting period, the Company’s restructured impairment loan balance stood at RMB5,851 million,
decreasing by RMB1,151 million from the beginning of the period, and accounting for 0.20% of total loan balances (down
by 0.09 percentage point from the beginning of the period).

Restructuring impairment loans refer to the loans arising from the re-determination of the loan terms at the Group’s
discretion for borrowers who are unable to repay the loans in accordance with the original loan terms due to the
deterioration of financial conditions. Where conditions permit, the Group will strive to restructure the loans instead of
obtaining the ownership of the collaterals. At restructuring, the Group assessed the restructured loans as impaired loans
on a case by case basis. The restructured loans previously disclosed included the balance of loans to enterprises that
were in good operating condition but extended new loans to repay existing ones due to temporary fund shortage. In
accordance with the spirit of regulatory regulations and the common practices of peers in the market, restructuring basis
was adjusted. At the end of December 2017, the “balance of restructuring impairment loans” was RMB34.242 billion
before the restatement, and RMB7.002 billion after the restatement. The “percentage in total loans” was 1.41% before
the restatement, and 0.29% after the restatement.

(IV) Foreclosed assets and impairment provision

Unit: RMB million

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Category A Provision for Provision for
mount impairment Amount impairment

Foreclosed assets 1,029 48 480 17
Incl: Buildings 943 47 392 16
Land use rights 85 0 85 0
Others 1 1 3 1
Less: Impairment provision (48) - 17) -
Net value of foreclosed assets 981 - 463 -

During the reporting period, the Company obtained foreclosed assets with a total book value of RMB688 million (mainly
including land and buildings), and recovered RMB122 million from the disposal of foreclosed assets, thereby increasing
the net book value of foreclosed assets by RMB549 million. The Company conducted re-evaluation for certain foreclosed
assets, resulting in an increase in the provision for impairment of RMB31 million.

(V) Information of structure entities under control of the Company

For information of consolidated structure entities and structure entities which were not consolidated but managed by and
entitled to equity by the Company, refer to Notes VI11.48 to the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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(VI) Information of financial bonds held

1. Categories and par value of financial bonds held as at the end of the reporting period

Unit: RMB million

Category Par value
Bonds of policy banks 33,182
Bank bonds 30,146
Bonds of non-banking financial institutions 52,694
Total 116,022

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company conducted tests on the financial bonds it held and found no
impairment. Therefore, no bad debt provision was made.

2. Top ten financial bonds held at the end of the reporting period

Unit: RMB million

Name of bond Par value Annual yield rate (%) Maturity date
Bond 1 23,860 3.61 07/06/2025
Bond 2 15,090 3.59 19/09/2022
Bond 3 12,000 5.00 29/03/2019
Bond 4 11,800 3.57 22/06/2024
Bond 5 11,620 3.60 06/09/2025
Bond 6 11,290 4.44 16/01/2021
Bond 7 11,260 3.47 13/07/2022
Bond 8 10,610 3.73 19/10/2022
Bond 9 10,450 3.77 08/03/2025
Bond 10 9,610 4.42 20/03/2024

(VII) Derivative financial instruments held at the end of the reporting period

Unit: RMB million

Fair value

Item Nominal value

Asset Liability
Interest rate derivatives 2,872,190 14,090 13,440
Exchange rate derivatives 3,737,959 27,272 24773
Precious metals derivatives 15,417 234 413
Credit derivatives 13,467 496 197
Total 42,092 38,823
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(VIII) ltems related to measurement of fair value

In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Company set up an
internal management system to standardize the measurement of the fair value of financial instruments. The measurement
of the fair value adopted by the Company in accounting was determined based on the active level of the products and
the maturity of the internal valuation model. For financial instruments that had active market quotation, the fair value
would be measured on the basis of active market quotation. For financial instruments that had no active market quotation
but had a mature internal model, the fair value would be measured on the basis of internal model pricing. For financial
instruments that had neither active market quotation nor mature internal pricing model, the fair value would be measured
on the basis of prices quoted by a trading counterparty, or determined with reference to the valuation results provided
by an authoritative, independent, professional third-party valuation agency. The measurement of fair value of financial
instruments traded by the Company was primarily based on the active market quotation.

Unit: RMB million

Accumulated

Gains and losses e Provision for
December . ) changes in fair . . December
Item in the period from . impairment made
31, 2017 ! . value recognized . . 31, 2018
changes in fair value . . in the period
in equity
Financial assets at fair
) 362,072 (320) - - 459,598
value through profit or loss
Precious metals 29,906 (360) - - 3,185
Derivative financial assets 28,396 - - 42,092
Uative fi ; 3,589
IZ_)er_l\_/:_ﬂtlve financial 29514 ) ) 38,823
liabilities
Available-for-sale financial 502,381 ) 2157 648 644,886
assets
Financial |IabI|ItIeS.at fair 6,563 10 ) ) 2,594
value through profit or loss
(IX) Situation of interest receivable
Unit: RMB million
Item December 31, 2018 Increase in the Recoveryinthe o omber 31, 2017
reporting period reporting period
Interest receivable 34,463 270,578 266,521 30,406

As at the end of the reporting period, the interest receivable increased by RMB4.057 billion or 13.34% from the figure at
the beginning of the period, mainly because of the increase in interest-bearing assets.
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(X) Provision for impairment of other receivables

Unit: RMB million

ltern December December Provision for Provision method
31,2018 31,2017  impairment

At the end of the period, other receivables were tested
Other receivables 16,507 15,496 1,739 individually and collectively to make provision for
impairment by taking into account of aging analysis.

(XI) Situation of off-sheet items that may have material impact on the financial position and
operating results

Unit: RMB million

ltem December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Letters of credit 112,002 85,144
Letters of guarantee 123,668 120,259
Bank acceptance 532,919 384,247
Unused credit cards commitments 284,430 208,127
Irrevocable loan commitments 38,545 41,500

(XII) Risks and risk management during the reporting period

1. Overview

Risk management is the basic guarantee for the survival and development of commercial banks. The Company
regards risk management as one of the core competitiveness. It has formulated the development strategy laying equal
stress on business operation and risk management, established the advance, in-process and subsequent risk control
system centering on risk assets management, and improved the risk management system and operation procedures
for various businesses and the risk accountability and punishment mechanism. The credit risks, market risks, liquidity
risks, operation risks and other risks exposed to various businesses and customers are included in the scope of
comprehensive risk management. In addition, the Company further clarified the specific duties of the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, senior management and executives in respect of risk management and formed a specific,
clear and effective comprehensive risk management system. In daily risk management, the business department, risk
management functional departments and internal audit department form “three lines of defense” of risk management with
clear responsibilities and duty segregation to achieve the risk management goals.

2. Credit risk management

The Company’s credit risk management objectives are: establishing and continuously improving the credit risk
management system, promoting the specialization level and refinement of credit risk management, optimizing the
orientation of credit granting and customer structure, constantly reinforcing risk management and control of the overall
credit business process, realizing the balance between risks and gains, and effectively controlling risks.

During the reporting period, given the macro-economic situation and industrial development prospects, the Company
continued to maintain the synergy between and lay equal emphasis on risk management and business development
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and further improved credit risk management system and to maintain basically stable and good asset quality. First, the
company further optimized its authorization and credit granting policies as well as execution of such policies. It timely
adjusted and optimized authorization and continued to implement the differentiated granting policy of “assuring supply,
control and stock compression”. The Company improved the Group’s unified credit extension management by continuing
to promote the information construction of the Group’s unified credit extension management to build an unified customer
risk view at the Group level. The Company strengthened the supervision and evaluation of the implementation of
authorization and granting policy and examination of post-approval evaluation to ensure policy implementation. Secondly,
the Company reinforced risk alert monitoring. It has fully used the big data analysis methods provided by the risk warning
management system to strengthen the dynamic supervision and warning across the entire business process, in a bid to
“identify, warn about and dispose” risky project as early as possible. It timely interpreted and implemented the regulatory
policies, increased the efforts in inspection of risk hotspots and key areas. For issues found, it would strengthen
management and carry out rectification. Thirdly, the Company optimized relevant performance assessment mechanism.
It has set asset quality indicators in a scientific manner and combined assessment on asset quality control results with
that on asset quality control process, so as to solidify the asset quality. It has added performance assessment indicators
for mentioned assets, in a bid to guide operating organs to eliminate potential risks ahead of schedule. Fourthly, efforts
were made for disposal of risk assets. The Company advanced the construction of a specialized non-performing asset
disposal operation and management system, and continued to develop a strong and dedicated non-performing assets
recovery team, so as to enhance the Company’s expertise in non-performing asset disposal. It also stepped up efforts
in cash recovery, write-off and market-oriented disposal of non-performing assets, and improved the recovery ratio of
writing-off accounts and maintaining records, significantly enhanced efficiency and effectiveness in non-performing asset
disposal.

3. Liquidity risk management

The Company’s objectives for management of liquidity risk were: firstly, ensuring the demand of payment; secondly,
improving the application efficiency of funds and guaranteeing the rapid and healthy development of all businesses; and
thirdly, realizing the unification of “security, liquidity and profitability”.

During the reporting period, the Company thoroughly implemented the state’s macroeconomic policies and financial
regulatory requirements. It continued to consolidate the foundation for development based on the general principle
of striving for steady progress while maintaining stability, continued to promote business tran